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Property Plant and equipment .. 9 223,535,416 1Cj7,753,129

Totsl aslets 3,796,E92,E99 3,!.22,701,61.2

Liabilities:

Deposit liabilities l0 1,147,790,648 970,821,890

Deposit tbr shares 35,023,500 35,023,500

current tax liabilities I I I 1,016,53;; 19,5'18,957

Tenn loans 12 I,076,61 1,021 836,891,9'12

other liabilities 13 1?5,1416?_!38,954?19
Totxl llxbllttlcs

Net asscts t,401,t90,725 I,131,436,335

Equity:

Slrare capital

Relained earnings

Other reserves

ToAt equl6,rttritlut,rble to oq,,ity
Holders oftheComp:rny 1,401,190,725 I,131.436.335

The Finatcial Statemeuts were approved by the ol'Directors on
February 9th, 2023 aud oil its behalf by:

Pastor Bi:nbo - Chailman
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF INFINITY MICROFINANCE BANI( LIMITED

Reool.t on the Financial Statements
a

We have audited the
("the Microlinance financial

in equity, statemeirt ofcaslr
accounting policies and

other explanatory infonnation set out on pages 22 to

The Directors are responsible for the
and fair view in accordmce with

is necessary to enable the that are nraterial
misstatement whether due

about fhe amounls
depend on the

of ilre
risk assessmelts,

preparation and thir

oll oI

used and the
as evalualing the

Auditor's Resoonsihilitv
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial stateulents based on our
audit. Ws conducted our audit in accordance witlr Lrternational Standards on Auditing.
'I'hose standards require that lve conrply rvith ethical requir€rrents ancl plan anci
pertbrnr the audit to obtain reasonable assrtrance lvhetlrer the t'inancial statenlents are
flee Iiorn nraterial nrisstalerrrerrl.

INFINITY MICROIINANCE BANI( LIMITtrD
ABRIDGE STATEMENT OI' trINANCIAL POSITION
AS A',r 3t DICDMBER, 2022,

Assets
Cash and cash equivalerrts

Loans arrd advances

- Equity InYcstnrenl

- Treasury Bills
Other assets

I'1rcro inonce llonfi Ltd

2021

N
685,912,432

2,114,742,517

14,590,9 I 8

82,989,620

l 16,660,39s

Notes
4

-5

6

7

8

2022

il
609,846,695

2,660,272,760

26,799,055

91,77A,445

184,518,527

l4
l5

l6

I 10,905,670

904,1 59,540

386.1 2s,253

1 t0,905,670

668t340,501

352,190,1 64

l\{ani'gin g Di rector'/CEO
FRC NO.:

]! r. Samuel Jolrn Chincdu - l{ead of Accounts
FRC NO.: FRC/2015/lcAN/00000012819

ABRIDGE STATEIIIENT ON COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3I DECtrMBER 2022

2022

h-otes N
Interest inconle

Interest expense

Net interest inconre

Fee and commission inconre

Operatiug incoure

Intpaimrent loss on financiirl assets :

Other Knorvn Losses

Depreciation expenses

Persolrrel expelses

Otlrer operrtir:g experrse:

Profit before inconlc lilx
Provision For Tax

Profit for the year'

Other compreheusive inconre, net of
income tax
Fair value gains/(losses) on available fbr sale

iDvestlnerrts

Other cornprehensive inconre tbr the 1,ear, net olta\
Total comprehensive income for the yetr

286,2'12,574 200,641,889

(17,000,000) . (15,000,000)

@

2,208,137

We believe tliat the audit evidence rve have
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Oninion

In our opinion, the
Infinitl,
perfonnance
hrternational

for the

intemational
Nigelia and in the
2020, and tlre Banks
and Supervisory

Cornpliance
2020.

ln our opinion, proper books ofaccoult
so far as appears liour oLrr examinatioir of those
!'inancial Position ard Statement
acc0unts.

during the year

FRC NO.: llRcl20l3^CANiO0000001813
OIu Aladejebi & Co.
(Clrartered Accountants)
Lagos, \igeria
9 February, 2023

I Tel:0815 909 1602,0815 909 1603
com

2021

N

is sufficient and appropriate to

MatteN Act

t1

t8

1,0 I 0,005,277

(16t.97'7,637)

'192,274,2s1

(t39,51 I,958)

848,02't,640

159,698,713

652,"t62,294

t23,441,302l9

5ii

I
20

21

t,001 ,726,413
(31 ,27 4 ,897)

(4 1,555,684)

(409,195,267)

(239,427,991)

27r,480,711 185,641,889

Earnings per share - basic (hobo) 2? t22 84

580 lkorodu Road, Kosofe Bus-Stop, Mile.12, PO.Box 8293, Shomolu, Lagos, Nigeria.
E-mail: info@infinitymfb.com I Website: www.infinitymfb
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'176,203,596'

( I 6,55 5,975)
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INFINITY MICROFINANCE, BANK LIMITBD
CHAIRN{ANS STATEMBNT TOR YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Distinguished shareholders, ladies and gentlemen, it is my pleasure to welcome you all to the

Sixteenth Aunual General lvleeting of Infinity }vlicrofinance Bank Limited and to present to you the

Financial Statements of Infinity Miuofinance Bank Limited for the year ended 31 December2022.

KEY SOCIO.ECONOMIC HIGHLIGTS OF'THE YEAR

Tlre world treaded on a dark dreary part in 2022. The Russian invasion of Ukaine in b-ebruary

2022and the ripple effects had a huge negative impact throughout the year. There were increasing
number of international sanctions, disruption of global trade and supply chains adding to the pre-

existing challenges occasioned by the Covid 19 lockdown. Trade tensions increased between US,
China and the rest of the world. At the intemational level, the year is remembered mostly for
unpleasant surprises and shocks of the war that inrpinged the year right from the first quarter and its
spiralling effects on global supply chains resulting in varied macroeconomic challenges in most
economies of the world.

The global oil and gaS prices spiralled while grain prices stretched to new heights. The ltussian
invasion led to sanctions by western allied countries and counter-sanctions by Russia. This disrupted
the global supply of crude oil, natural gas, and grains like wheat and corn. Inflation soared into
double digits across continents including Europe and America. In Nigeria, the supply chain
difficulties of the COVID-l9 period had translated to higher costs of inputs ancl rising domestic
r,vholesale and retail prices. By mid-2022, this resulted in higher corporate finance costs, weaker
consumer demand, and sliding profit margins. Many economies fell into recessions during the year.

Local average inflation rate spiralled from 13.21% in 2020, 16.98% in 2021, to 18.76% in 2022.
This is combined with other problems stifling the Nigerian economy, most especially delicate
security situations with bandits harassing citizens across state borders in the south, while religious
brigands teruorize communities across the north. Unemployment, I(dnappings, political killings, and
ethno religious conflicts are other sore social touch points.

The warm-up to the Nigeria General Elections that will lead to the emergence on new political actors
in May 2023 began in eamest in2022 and heated up in the 3'd and 4th Quarter of the year, thereby
constituting another pressure on the socio-political environment during the year. Political uncertainty
naturally discourages investors. ^,A.ll things being equal, Nigerians will be at the poll in February
2023 to decide the next set of leaders who will control both the social and economic trends of the

country. The Independent National Electoral Commission's list for the 2O23presidential election is
up to eighteen contestants, there are up four leading contenders and the presidential candidates have
few areas of convergence, such as the removal of subsidies and increasing productivity, but they
have different tendencies on other key issues.

During the year, Nigeria's economic growth has slowed on the back of declining oil output and
moderating non-oil activity. Real gross domestic product (GDP) rose by 3.1 percent year-on-year in
the first three quarters of 2022, little more than the annual population growth of 2.6 percent. Inflation
surged to 21.1 percent year-on-year in October 2022, pushing as many as five million more
Nigerians into poverty since the staft of 2022, Fiscal pressures have intensified, exacerbated by the
soaring cost of the petrol subsidy which will likely exceeded five trillion Naira in 2022. Despite
higher oil export revenues, official reserves have fallen, and the currency market is severely
distorted, undermining the business environment and investment.

5
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On tfie value of the Naira, Nigeria had consistently devalued its currency on a yearly basis in the

official market since the 2}1512016 recession. ln20l6, it was devah,red to N253 from N192 in 2015.

It dropped to N305.8 in2017,N306.1 in 2018, N306.9 in20l9, then to N379.8 in2020 and further

down to N414 in 2021 and N454.5 4 :rr.2022.On unemployment, the corrntry's unemploymerrt rate

has more than tripled. The National Bureau of Statistics reported that Nigeria's unemployment rate

rose to 33.3 per cent, translating to some23.2 million people in March 2022.

TIGHT BUSINESS E}IVIRONMENT AND HIGH LIVING COSTS

A preliminary estimate of Nigeria's Gross Domestic Product (GDP) in2022 indicates that the

country grew by 2.25% year-on-year in Q3, 3.54% year-on-year in Q2, and 3.11olo yeaf-on-year in

Ql. This has led to an annualized rate of 2.97% in 9-month 2022, supported by about 7% growth

from the service sector and over 1% growth in the agricultural seetor but capped by the negative
growth in the industrial sector. The annualized growth as of Q3 2,Q22 dropped from an annualized
growth of 3.18% in Q32021, attributable to the base effects of the recession and the challenging

economic conditions that have impeded productive activities. Analysts say the elevated inflation and

lrigher cost of funds would depress private sector growth and household spending in Q4 2022,
bringing the expected real GDP growth for the year to about3Yo.

With a dearth of Nigeria's unemployment data for 2022, analyst says recent data from the

National Pension Commission (PENCOM) on RSA withdrawal suggest a deteriorated economy and

a worsened labour market in 2022. Recent data from PENCOM shows that the nrrmber of
withdrawals made by laid-off workers in Q3 2022 swged toN8.28bn from ll,9l3 workers, up from
N5.66bn in Q3 2021 from 9,517 workers. Cumulatively, a total of 30,680 RSA holders under 50

years were disengaged from work between January and September 2022. The spiralling inflationary
trend has forced many employers of labour to downsize.

Elsewhere, the recently released National Multidimensional Poverty Report 20i22 by the National
Bureau of Statistics (NBS) shows that 63% (or l33million) of Nigerians are multi dimensionally
poor, consiclering metrics such as food insecurity, access to healthcare, poo{ nutrition,

unemployment, etc. Analysts say the poverty reduction strategies in Nigeria have failed to achieve

the desired objective in 2022 due to a lack of commitment by relevant government agencies,

corruption, and bureaucratic bottlenecks.

Annual inflation for2022 averaged 18.76yo, recording the lone decline for the year in December

when it dropped down to 21.34o/o from 21.47% in November following 11 months of rising
consumer price indexes which was a lTyear high. The rising inflation was buoyed by the exchange

rate pass-through effect of the Russia-Ukraine war, high energli prices, nationwide flood, and

reoccun'ing fuel scarcity. There is a somewhat consensus arnong analysts and policymakers in
Nigeria that persistent inflationary pressures are largely functions of structural, and imported
inflation, given the large dependency of Nigeria on imported products. In an effort to control the

spiralling inflation and ease the pressure on the naira, the monetary policy, authority of the CBN
raised the benchmark MPR rate by a cumulative 500 basis points to l65Yo in November 2022 fuom
11.5%inlanuary 2A22

The rising inflation triggered by the Russian-Ulaainian war took a toll on the welfare of the average

Nigerian. The significant rise in the cost of clothing, housing, and food without a ooresponding
upward adjustment in wages crippled the income of individuals, making Nigerians poorer.

According io the National Bureau- of Statistic s, 63Yo of Nigerians are multi-dimensionally poor,

indicating l33million of the total population estimated at2l1 million fell into the poverty net. Most
Nigerian households were deprived of clean energy $eurces, quality:healthcare, clean sanitation, and

t
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water as the cost of basic amenities doubled, making Z out oft 0 Nigerians living in rural areas and 4

out of 10 i1 urban areas fall below the poverty line. The data confirms that tho oost of living spiked

comparecl to the pre-Covid period whln the monetary poverty rate rvas 4:8.1% witlr about 82.9rn

p.opl. being poer according to the Nigerian living Standards Survey. The Covid-l9 and Russia-

Ukraine war tossecl more Nigerians below the poverty.

OPERATING ENYIRONMENT DURING THE YEAR

In the pre-election year, insecurifu became a subject of worry with the escalation in terrorist attacks,

abductions, ancl heidsmen attackr. rfr. insurgency spread to all regions, heightened by the tefforist

attack on Abuja to tr(aduna train, where many were killed and held captive for months, the Ondo

state church attack, and much more violence was seen in different regions. The mass abduction ancl

attack on farmlands ancl individuals became a hindrance to productivity, unleashing intense fear and

tension in the country. People had to neglect some specific routes and roadmaps due to the rage of
the attacks coupled with the electoral campaigns during tire period.

Amidst other contributory factors, the incessant clepreciation of the Naira against other major

currencies has been another limiting strain to the improvement of Nigerians' welfare, given that

Nigeria is an import-dependent country. The possibility of a better standard of living seems to

dampen every paising year for an average Nigerian, looking at the deteriorating inflation, cuffency,

and insecurity.

Nigerians have been trooping out of the country in a bid to better their earnings, standard of living,

and safety nets to cater to their families. The rising unemployment rate, lack of quality basic

infrastrucitye, heightened insecurity, and poor governance fuelled aggressive rnigration to other

countries in recenlyears. Although the evolution of technology promoted migration to vast growing

regions globally, ihe inherent economic hardship of the courtry and the large unemployed

population spurred the huge shift in Nigeria.

From a positive lens, the relocation has been beneficial in terms of diaspora remittances. According

to the central bank of Nigeria, diaspora remittances into the country grew by ll.2% to US$19.2bn in

2021and increasecl by 9.6% between January and June 2022. However, the demography of the

emigrant poses a threat to the Nigerian economy, seeing that the skilled workforce dominates the

nurrib.r oipeople exiting the country such as doctors, Nurses, IT engineers, and others. The number

of emigrants has grown significantly, particularly to countries such as the united tr(ingdom, Canada,

the United States, Germany, and others. Considering that the skilled labour force is an integral

trigger for growth in an economy, a continuous human capital export might be detrimental-to the

roi*try in the long run. The country needs to address the issues of unemployment, health, and

security to reverse the trend, seeing that the negative effect outweighs the gains.

Despite the daunting challenges of the year, the Nigerian Banking Sector have shown .1t9lg

resiiience in the face of endemic and pandemic constraintsin2022, both in terms of profitabi'lity

asset quality ancl growth in key indices, The Financial services industry have generally shown great

adaptability in the embracing digital banking and payment services. Some of the leading Deposit

Money Banks have embru..d th. Holding Company Structure so they can provide m_ore inclusive

servicbs in insurance, capital markets, banking, insurance, pension, capital market and government

sectors. In order to drive the financial inclusion goals of the Federal Government, the Central Banlr

of Nigeria have granted licenses to more Mobile Money Operators and Payment $ervice 84.t.
ivfany-of the Banlis, Telecommunication ancl Fintech companies are early birds in the bourgeoning

market having seen great potential it holds for the futlre.
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FUTURE CHALLI}NGES AND QPPORTUNITIES

Distilguishecl shareholders, you will recall that the Central Bank of Nigeria in the wake of the

Covid-t9 panclernic extended the cleadline for the recapitalization of Micro-finance BanJEs to April
2022. This was due to the negative impact of the Pandemic on the economy and small and medium

businesses. April2022 was thi set clay 
-for 

State Microfinance Bank like Infinity Microfinance Banks

Limitecl to upgrade their share capital fronr minimum of Hundred nrillion to minimum of One

Billion Naira, *t it" National Microfinance Banl<s are to inuease their Ivlinimum Shareholders fund

from One Billion Naira to Five Billion Naira. Infinity Miuofinance Bank have followed our

recapitalization plan which was approved by the Central Bank of Nigeria. Our Shareholder's flrncl is

The finalcial services industry has come uncler intense competition from agile and innovative

fintech firms leveraging on technology to deliver tailored financial service offerings to consumers

ancl corporates. With a huge population of tech savvy population, increasing smart phones and

internet penetration, large rurbanked population, the lanclscape of Microflnance Banking has

continuecl to witness more fintech disruptions. In the last 5 years fintech investments have soared

immensely and new players are off'ering fresh competition in existing and new niche segments.

Infinity Microfinance Bank will continrie to make strategic investments in the Fintech space while

not losing sight of our traditional markets. We are detemrined to continue to fuse the convenience

that fintech solutions bring into banking to every aspect of our existing business and to reach out to

new market segments and create more convenience to our existing custorrets.

As a ftilly recapitalized State Microfinance Bank, we believe more opportunities abound in the

Microfinance Banking business given a more stable post 2023 election year and beyond. We shall

continue to work with our customers to adapt their businesses and manage new risks in the emerging

business environment. Though the macro-economic ohallenges and insecurities have been enormous,

we have supportecl the businesses of our customers and prepared ourselves for new opporfurnities in
the years aheacl. More than ever before, we will continue to support our numerous customers as they

navigate the turbulence in the business environment through alt the possible survival strategies.

Following our rebranding exercise in 2}zl,Infinity Microfinance BanJ< now commands a stronger

brand appeal and we have explored new avenues to make our presonce recognizable to the public

through our existing branches plus social and print media. Though we did not open new Branches in
2022, we invested in many of our existing branches. Some were moved to new locations that

command better visibility ancl accessibility while the physical appeal and ambience of some of the

older branches were given a facelift. More than before, we have continued to support our customers

to navigate the myriads of macro-economic challenges and multifaceted risks in the economy as a

result of the myriads of problems foisted on businesses from both local and international community.

Infinity Microfinance Bank submitted herself to ratings by some of the leading rating agencies in the

financial Market in 2022. We were rated Bbb by Agusto & Co and BBB by Data Pro. We plan to
continue to submit the bank to ratings and we are corhmitted to striving to improve our rating. We

renewed and strengthened our relationship with some of our local and international partners,

especially, Development Bank of Nigeria and lately Symbiotics. In August 2022, Infinity
Microfin.ance Bank Limited made a new inroad in funding opportunities by debuting as the first
Microfinance Bank in Nigeria to lle listed on the FivIDQ Exchange. This is a funding window to

At Inflnity Microfinance Bank Limited, we are determinecl to make our mobile bantcing solutions,

aka InfinityNowNow a household name tlu'ough which our customers can transact all classes of
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banking services on the go. Our re-launched Card Services, E-channels services and Intemet

Banking are up ancl running to bring banking services closer to the banking public. In the new year

21z3,Infinity 1rdicrofinance Banl< Limited will be making new strides and introducing more fintech

based new pioducts and services.

OPERATING RESULTS

Ladies and gentlemen, fellow shareholders, I am pleased to inform you that despite the hostile

business 
"nriron*"nt 

under which we operate d in 2022, our Bank recorded positive results in

accordance with our tradition and trends in the past years. Our results showed that we made

significant improvement on preceding year's performance, when \rye recovered from the Covid-19

crises.

Our gloss earning recorclecl 28o/o inqease to 1,169,704,050 for the year ended 3lDecember 2022

comparecl to 915,715,554 for the year ended 31 Decemb er 2021. Likewise, the Total Assets grew by

22Yo from a sum of 3,122,709,612 for the year ended 3lDecember 2021compared to 3,796,802,899

for tlre year ended 3lDecember 2022. Our Loan portfolio also grew fi'om a total of 2,114,742,517 as

at 3lDecemb er 2021 to 2,660,272,760 as at 3lDecember 2022 thereby recording an increase of 26%.

On the profitability index, Our Profit Before Tax increased by 43Yo hon 200,641,889 as at

3lDecember 2021 to 286,272,574 as at 3lDecerrber 2022 while the profit After Tax increaseql by

46Yafron 185,641,889 as at 3lDecember202l to271,480,711as at 3lDecember2022.

The result posted this difficult year will not have been possible without outstanding commitment of
our management ancl staff and the unwavering suppoft of customers. The quality of our people has

been the pillar of our consistent growth and vibrancy. We were able to brace up our performances

after the Covid-19 challenges and soar above the headwinds in a turbulent year bedevilled with local

and international challenges of war, insecurities, inflation with economic and political challenges.

In order to reward the support and confidence of the shareholders of our BanJ<, The Board of
Directors has recommended a dividend of 5 kobo per share for every 50 kobo share of Infinity
Microfinance Bank as at 3l't December 2022. To effect these changes a special resolution has been

proposed by the Board at the Annual General Meeting.

Finally, I thank my colleagues on the Board for unflinching commitment, dedication ancl invaluable

contributions during the year 2022.

Thank you for

Pastor Bimbo ayi
Chairman, Board of Directors
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INF'INITY MICROFINANCE BANI( LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT BOR TTIE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

The Directors have the pleasure in presenting their reports on the affairs of Infinity Microfinance

Bank Limited (,,the Microfinance Bank") together with the audited financial statements and auditor's

report for the year ended 31 Decembe42022.

Legal Form and PrinciPal ActivitY

Tlre Bank was licensecl by Central Bank of Nigeria on 23 October 2007 to operate microfinance

banking and provide microfinance services to customers ttu'ough its Head Office and subsequently

approved cash centres.

The Bank was incorporated on 09 August 2007 as private company limited by shares and

commencecl operations in November 2007.

The Microfinance Bank's principal activity is to carry on business as a microfinance bank, providing

financial service to micro, small and medium scale enterprises and other low income people in

Nigeria in the form of working capital and loans. The Microfinance bank is eligible to accept

deposits from individuals, groups and private organizations and also,raise finance in accordance with

the CBN regulations and guidelines on micro finance banks.

Directors Interest

The interest of the Directors in the issued share capital of the bank is recorded in the register of

shareholdings as at 3l Decemb er 2Q22 as follows:

Number of ordinary shares held

Direct Holding Indirect Holding

Mr Gabriel Oludotun Adewunmi

Chief Godwin Okafor

Dr. Samson Amedu

Mr Jide Diya

Mr. Bimbo Josiah Ajayi

Dr Tope Oloniniyi

2,596,667

51,394,667

7,153,000

5,066,667

353,000 1,862,432

82,821,334

I
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Operating results

The Microfinance Bank commenced operations immediately after being granted the license to

operate as Microfinance Bank. Highlights of the Ivlicrofinance Bank's results for the year urder

review are as follows:

Profit for the year

Provision for tax
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
Fair value gains/(losses) on available for sale investments

Total comprehensive income for the year

Analysis of Shareholdings

31Dee.2A22
ST

286,272,574
(17.000.000)

...".ffi

269,212,574
2.?08.rtr7

271.480.711

31 Dec.2021
++

200,641,889

0I.090,,000)
185,641,889

18s.641.889

Range

1 - 10,000,000

10,000,001 - 20,000,000

20,000,001 - 30,000,000

Number of
Shareholders

a/o of
Shareholders

2.12

2.t2

Number of
I{oldings

o/o of
Shareholding

23.17
J t,))

45 95.74 43,797,669.33 39.49

,
1

25,697,333.33

and Above 41,41
.1

Total 11 70 100

Acquisition of own shares
fhJgank clid not purchase any of its own shares during the accounting period.

Substantial Interest in shares
Based on the Register of Shareholders as at December 31, 2022, apart from the under-listecl

shareholders no other shareholder held more than 10% of the share capital of the Bank;

SHARBHOLDERS I{OLDINGS % I{OLDING

74

Tope Oloniyi 41,410,667 JI.J)

CliiefGodwinOkafor 25,697,333.33 23.17

Donations and Charitable Gifts

The bank identifies with the aspirations of the community as well as the environment within which it
operates but could not make any charitable donation during the year ended 31 DecembeL 2022

owing to its financial strength which needed to be shoreil up.

Events after the Reporting f)ate

There are no events after the reporting date, which could have had material effect on the financial

position of the Bank as at December 31, 2A22 utdthe profit and other comprehensive income for the

period ended at that date.

1l
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INF'INITY MICROF'IN.A,NCE BANI( LIMITED

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

F'OR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER,2022

In accorclance with the provision of sections 334 and 335 of the Companies and Allied l\tlatters Act

2020 asamended, Seotions 24 and28 of the Bard<s and Other Financial Institutions Act 1991 and the

CBN Regulatory ancl Supervisory Framework for Microfinance Banks, the Directors are responsible

for the preparatiou of annual financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of

affairs of the Microfinance Bank and the profit or loss for the year.

These responsibilities include ensuring that;

Appropriate internal controls are established both to safeguard the assets of the Microfinance Bank

procedures are institnted to safeguard assets, prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The Microfinance Bank lceeps accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy the

financial position of the Microfinance Bank and ensures that the financial statements comply with

the requirements of the Statements of Accounting Standards applicable in Nigeria, Companies and

Allied Matters Act of Nigeria, Banks and Other Financial Institutions Act qf Nigeria and the Central

Bank of Nigeria Regulatory and Supervisory Framework for Microfinance Banks.

The Microfinance Bank has used appropriate accounting policies, consistently applied and supported

by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates, and that all applicable accounting standards

have been followed.

It is appropriate for the financial statements to be prepared on a going concern basis unless it is

presumed that the Microfinance Bank will not continue in business

Property, Plant & Equipment

Information relating to changes in Property, Plant & Equipment is given in Note 9 to the financial

statements.
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Employment of disabled persons

The Microfinance Bank has no clisabted persons in its employment.

Flowever, applications for employment by disabled persons are always ftilly considered, bearing in

mind the respective aptitudes and abilities of the applicants concemecl. In the event of members of

staff becoming disablecl, every effort will be made to ensure that their employment with the

Microfinance Bank continues and that appropriate training is arrangecl. It is the policy of the

I\rlicrofinance Bank that the training, career development and promotion of disabled persons should,

as far as possible, be iclentical with that of other employees.

Health, Safety and Welfare at work

The Microfinance Bank maintains business premises clesigned with a view to guaranteeing the safety

and healthy living conditions of its employees and customers alike. Employees are adequately

insured against occupational and other hazards.

Employee involvement and training

The Microfinance Bank policy with regards to employee involvement and training is to encourage

participation of employees in arriving at decisions in respect of matters affecting their well being.

Towards this end, the Microfinance Bank provides opportunities where employees deliberate on

issues affecting the Microfinance Banl< and employee interests, with a view to making inputs to

decisions thereon. The Microfinance Baril< places a high premium on the development of its

manpower. Consequently, the Microfinance BanJ< sponsored its employees for various training

courses in the period under review.

Auditors

Messrs Qlu Aladejebi & Co. auditors to the bank, have indicated their willingness to continue in

office, in accordance with section 357 (2) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, 2020 as

Company Secretary

By Order of the Board

30 January 2023

13
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INFINITY MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITBD

STATEN,IENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCS

FOR THB YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER,2022

Introduction

The Board of Directors has commenced proper implementation of Corporate Governance principle

in the operations of Infinity Microfinance Bank. The Directors have also endorsed compliance with

the provision of the Mlicrofinance Bank's code of Corporate Governance, which has incorporated

most of the provisions of the Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) Code on Corporate Qovernance for

Banks in Nigeria.

The Board

The Board is composed of 8 members, including the Chairman'

The Boarcl has four committees. These are the Credit Committee, Audit Committee, IT Steering

Committee, Boarcl Governance and Nomination committee. In addition to the Board Committees

thereareregularmeetingsbyvariousManagementCommittees.

Responsibility

The Board reviews corporate performance, authorises and monitor strategic decisions whilst

ensuring regulatory compliance and safeguarding the interest of the shareholders. The Board is

committed to ensuring that the Microfinance Bank is managed in a manner that will fulfiI the

shareholders aspirations and expectation. The Board has provided leadership for achieving the

strategic objectives of the Microfinance Bank.

Specifically, the responsibilities of Infinity Microfinance Bank Limited Board of Directors are:

,/ Determining the Microfinance Bank's objectives and strategies as well as plans to achieve

them;

,/ Determining the terms of reference and procedures of the Board Committees, including

reviewing and approving the reports of such committees where appropriate;

'/ Considering and approving Jhe annual budget, monitoring performance, and ensuring that

Infinity Microfinance Bank is a gciing concern;

,/ Ensuring that effective risk marlagement process exists and is maintained;

I
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,/ Retaining responsibility for systems of financial, operational and internal control and

regulatory compliance, as well as ensruing that statutory reporting of these is adequate.

Chairman and Chief Executive

In line with best practice and the provision of both the CBN and the Microfinance Bank Codes of

Corporate Governance, the responsibilities of the Chairman and the Managing Director are

separatecl. While the Chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board and creating the

conditions for overall Board and individual Director's effectiveness, the Managing Director is

responsible for the overall performance of the N[icrofinauce Bank, including responsibilities for

ensuring day to day management and control.

Attendance of Board and Board Committee Meetings

The Table below shows the Frequency of Meetings of the Board Of Directors and Board

Committees, as well as Members' Attendance For The Year Ended December 31,2022.

S/N Directors Designation Status Attendance
Date Of Meetings 27-Ian-2022

24-Apr-2Q22
19-Iuly-2022
20-Oct-2022

Nnmber Of Meetings 4.

I Pastor Bimbo Josiah Aiayi Chairman Non-Executive 4

Mr. Dotun Adewunmi Member Executive 4l

Chief Godwin Olcafor Member Non-Executive 4

Dr. Samson Amedu Ir{ember Non-Executive 4

Mr'. Tope Oloniniyi Member Non-Executive 4
Mr. Olaiide Diya Member Non-Executive 4

Mrs. I(ehinde Olubi Ivlernber Non-Executive 4

The Chairman is not a member of any Committee in compliance with the CBN Code which prohibits

the Chairman of the Board from being a member of any Committee;

RESIGNATION, ELECTIQN OR RE.ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

There was no resignation, election or re-election of directors during the year.

Standing Committees

The Board discharges its responsibilities through a number of standing committees whose charter are

reviewed from time to time. The committees consist of:

The Board Credit Committee

This Committee was set up to assist the Board of Directors in the discharge of its responsibility to

exercise clue care, ctiligence and skill in overseeing, directing ancl reviewing the managemeril of the ,

l

credit portfolio of the Baalc The committee consider loan application above specified limits and



which has been approved by EXCO credit committee. It also serve,s as 4 catalyst f-ot arsdil policy

changes going from EXCO credit committee to Board for consideration. The cornmittee also reviews

S/N Names Status Designation l)ates of Attendance

1 Chief Godwin Okafor Non-Executive Director Chairman Q2-Feb-2022
03-May-2022
26-Iuly-2022
27-Oct-2022

2 Mr. Tope Oloniniyi Non-Executive Director Member 02-Feb-2022
03-May-2022
26-hrly-2021
27-Oct-2022

3 lVIr. Dotun Adewunmi Managing Director I\tlember 02-Feb-2022
Q3-May-2022
26-Iuly-2022
27-Oct-2022

Committee's Terms of Reference

,/ To recommend criteria by which the Board of Directors can evaluate the credit facilities

presented from various customers and review the credit portfolio of the Bank.

,/ To consicler all credit facilities above Management approval limit.

'/ To establish and periodically review the Bank's credit portfolio in order to align

organizational strategies, goals, and performance.

'/ To make recommendations to the Board of Directors with respect to credit facilities based

upon performance and other factors as deemed appropriate.

'/ To recommend to the Board of Directors, as appropriate, new credit proposals, restructure

plans, and amendments to existing plans.

'/ To report to the entire Board at such times as the Committee and Board shall determine, but

not less than every quarter.

'/ To perform such other duties and responsibilities as the Board of Directors may assign. from

time to time.

,/ To recommend non-performing creclits for write-off by the Board.

The Board Audit Committe

The Board Audit Committee was set up to further strengthen internal control in the Bank, in

compliance with Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP20, LFN 2020 as amended. It assists the

Board of Directors in fulfilling its. audit responsibilities by ensuring that an effective system of

financial and internal control is in place within the Microfinance Bank.

t
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S/N Names Status Designation Dates of Attendance

I Irzlrs, Kehinde Olubi Nori-Executive Director Chairman
17-Apr-2022
72-July-2022
l3

2 Dr. Samson Amecltt Non-Executive Director Member
17-Apr-2022
l}-Itrly-2022
1

J Mr. Olajide Diya Non-Executive Director Member

Committee's Terms of Reference

./ To meet with the independent Auditors, Chief Financial Officer, Internal Auditor and any other

Bank executive both individually and/or together, as the Commifiee deems appropriate at such

times as the Committee shall determine to discuss;

o the terms of engagement for the independent auditors, the scope of the audit, ancl the

proceclures to be used;the Bank's quarterly and audited annual financial statements, including

any related notes, the Bank's specific clisclosures and discussion under "Managements

Control Report and the independent auditors'report, in advance of publication;

o the performance and results of the external and internal audits, including the independent

auditors' management letter, and management's responses thereto;

o the effectiveness of the Bank's system of internal controls, including computerized

information systems and security; any recommendations by the independent auditor and

intemal auditor regarding internal control issues and any actions taken in response thereto;

and, the intemal control certification and attestation required to be made in connection with

the Bank's quarterly and annual financial reports;

,/ To actively engage in a dialogue with the independent auditors with respect to any disclosed

relationships or sarvices that may impact the objectivity and independence of the independent

auditors and to take appropriate action in response to the independent auditors'report to satisff

itself of the independent auditors' independence; to periodically evaluate the independent

auditor's qualifications and performance including a review of the lead partner, taking into

account the opinion of management and the internal auditor;

,/ To review critical accounting policies and financial statement presentation; to discuss with

management and the independent auditors significant financial reporting issues and judgments

made in preparation of the finartcial statements including the effect of altemative accounting

methods; to review major changes in accounting policies.

,/ To report to the entire Board at such times as the Committee shall determine.

17
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The Board Nomination and Governance Committee

The Boarcl Nomination and Qovemance Committee consider plans, budget, business models,

strategies and the audited accounts of the Microfinance Bank. It also considers staff matters in

respect of senior officers of the Microfinance Bank from Managers gracle and above.

S/N Names Status Designation Dates of Attendance

1 Mr. Tope Oloniniyi Non-Executive Director Chairrnan 20-lan-2022
24-Mar-2022
\2-Iuly-2022
22-Nov-2022

2 I\{r. Dohrn Adewunmi Ivlanaging Director Member 20-Jan-2022
24-Mar-2022
l2-July-2022
22-Nov-2022

J Chief Godwin Olcafor Non-Executive Director \{ember 20-Ian-2022
24-Mar-2022
l2-July-2022
22-Nov-2022

Committee's Terms of Reference

,/ Review of all matters relating to staff welfare, including remuneration of staff and Executive

Management;

,/ Consideration of all large scale procurement to be made by the Bank;

,/ Review of contracts award for significant expenditures;

'/ Consideration of promotions of Senior Management staff of the Bauk; and

,/ Any other matter that may be referred to it by the Board.

The Board IT Steering Committee

The Board IT committse oversee the IT infrastructure of the Bank and formulate policies that will

guarantee business continuity and availability of link among others.

S/N Names Status Designation Dates of Attendance
1 Mr. Olajide Diya Non-Executive Director Chairman 25-Feb-2022

07-Apr-2022
19-A\e-2022
01-Nov-2022

2 Mrs.I(ehinde Olubi Non-Executive Director IVIember 25-Feb-2022
07-Apr-2022
19-Aug-2022
01-Nov-2022

a
J Dr. Samson Amedu Non-Executive Director Member 25-Feb-2022

07-Apr-2U22
19-Avg-2022
01-Nov-2022
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Committee's Terms of Reference

,/ Develop the short, meclium and long term IT plans for the Bank.

,/ Engineer the proper assimilation of the Bank on IT backbone

Executive Committee (DXCO)

The Executive Committee (EXCO) is made up of the Managing Director as chairman and other top

management staff of the Microfinance Bank. The committee meets,regularly to deliberate aad take

policy decision on the management of the Microfinance Bank. It is primarily responsible for the

implementation of strategies approved by the Board and ensuring efficient deployment of Inflnity

Microfi nance B ank' s resoluces.

Management Committees

These are standing committees made up of senior management of the Infinity Microfinance Bank.

The committees ensure that policies by the Board and the regulatory bodies are complied with and

also provicle inputs into the various Board Committees in addition to ensuring the effective

The Management Committees include: Management Credit Committee, Asset and Liabilities

Management Committees and Disciplinary Committee.

S/N Members Designation Attendance

1 Mr. Gabriel Oludotun Adewunmi M,D/CEO Every Monday

2. Mr. Segun Ogunniyi Head Research & Strategy Every Monday

J. Mr".I(trha Tokuma I-lead Rislc Mang. & Compl Every Monday

4 ivlr. Salami Oladele lnternal Audit & Invest.Flead Every Monday

5 Mr. Uche Arnadi Head Fluman Resources Every Monday

6. Mr. Wilson Okiriwenwen Flead Information Tech Every \donday

1 Mr. Samuel John Head Finance & Accounts Every Monday

8. Mr. Aniekan Monde-Umo I{ead Banking Operations Every Monday

The Board Evaluation

The Company conductecl an Annual Board and Directors' Evaluation and Appraisal covering all

aspects of the Boarcls' stnrcture, composition, responsibilities, processes and rglationships, in

compliance with the requirement of the CBN and FRC Codes. To conduct the Annual Board

Evaluation and Appraisal for the financi al year ended December 31,2022, the Board engaged the

firm of Resort Consult (the ConsultanQ. The Consultants carried out a comprehensive review of the

effectiveness of the Board by evaluating the perfoflnance of the Board, the Board Conrmittees and

t9



t

Directors. The report of the Evaluation and Appraisal wfll be presented to Sha.reholders at the

Ann*al General Ivleeting of the company. The Boarcl Elaluation and Appraisal report for the

financial year ended December 31,2Il!,revealed that the Company was in substantial compliance

with the provisions of the FRC Code

The Board Remuneration PolicY

The Microfinance Bank policy on remuneration of Non-Executive Directors is guided by the

provisions of the CBN Code which stipulates that Non-Executive Directors' remuneration should be

limitecl to sitting allowances, Directors' fees ancl reimbursable travel and incidental expenses.

The Corporate Social Responsibility

Infinity Microfinance bank has always maintained a high level of social responsibility, with a strong

desire to positively impact the host community. Our zeal and concern for betterment of the needy

around us to ftrlfil this social responsibility, we continuously engage in charitable acts to help the

less privilegecl, such as sponsoring events for physically challenged people or those afflicted with

Down syndrome ancl children with hospice care been taken care of.

The Sustainability and Environmental Issues

We are committed to creating long-term value for our esteemed stakeholders. Tluough our

responsible banking approach, we continue to develop and implement initiatives to enrich the lives

of our stakeholders (investors, shareholders, customers, employees, suppliers, regglators, and

communities).As an improvement-driven organization, we continue to clevelop innovative ways to

enhance our environmental, social, and economic performance. Our banking practices gravitate

towards resource efficiency, improving ,tuL.lrold.r relationship, effective risk management, and

excellent service delivery. Environmental issues represent a risk for our Bank. Recognizing such, we

have refined our strategy further to accommodate climate change challenges. We have achieved this

with a robust governance framework of policies and procedures and the incorporation of

environmental concems into our automated credit review process.

The Employment and Labour Relations

Infinity Microfinance Bank conforms with all regulatory requirements in the omployEent of staff

whilst also ensuring that only fit and proper persons are approved for appointment to Board or top

management position. The Microfinance Bank treats all employees, prospective employees and

customers fairly and equally, regatclless. of their gender, sexual orientation, family status, race,

colour, nationality, ethnic or national origin, religious belief, age, physical or mental disability, or

any such factor. The Ivlicrofinance Bank also continues to train and provide competitive welfare
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pacl@ge to all employees. This is basecl on our u**rrr.r, of the impoftance of our work force in

achieving our strategic business objectives.

The Whistle blowing Policy

The Microfinance bank expects all its employees and Directors to observe the highest level of

probity in their dealings with Bank and its stakeholders and it has instituted a strong whistle blowing

culture among staff and also created awareness among its stakeholder. The platfonn is accessible to

all and the aim is to ensure that all irregularities are made known and urgently attended to by the

bank.

Bribery and Corruption Policy

Infinity Microfinance Bank upholds the highest standarcls of ethical,conclucts in all its activities and

interactions. The Microfinance Bank has zero tolerance for any form of bribery, corruption, fraud

and unethical practices'among employees, between the Bank and its employees, as well as between

the Bank and external parties. The Bank also expects the same standards to be applied by third

parlies acting on behalf of the Bank. The Microfinance Bank's Board Approved Ethics policy

provides the requisite standards and principles on ethical conducts and practices expected and

required ofall staffand our related stakeholders.

Human Rights Policy

The bank is highly committed to maintaining a corporate culture that respects the principles aimed at

promoting; protecting and supporting national and internationally recognized human rights. We

recognize our responsibility to respect human rights and avoid complicity in human rights abuses,

Complaints Management Policy

The bank is committed to effective complaint handling and values feedback through complaints

when they arise. The complaints and feedback structure ensure the prompt resolution of customers'

complaints. It also serves as the liaison between the Bank and its customers as well as regulatory

authorities.

The complaints handling process is reviewecl periodichlly and complaints received are categorised

and reviewed properly with the aim of enhancing the Bank's delivery of efficient and effective

services. The Bank onsures that complaints are dealt with in an equitable, objective and unbiased

manner.
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REPORT OF THE AUDITQRS TO THE STTAREHQLDERS OB INFINITY

MICROF'INANCE BANK LTMITED

Report on the Financial Stetements

We have audited the accompanying financiai statements of Infinity Microfinance Bank

Limited ("the Microfineurce Bank") which comprise the statements of financial position as at

31 December,2022,the statements of comprehensive incomQ, changes in equrty, statement of

cash flows tor tlre year ended 31 Decernber, 2022, summary of significant accounting policies

and other explanatory inforrnation" as set out on pages 22-69'

l)irectorsr Respensibility for thc Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible. fc'r the preparation of financial statements that gives a trtte and

fair view irr accordance with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and in the

ma6er required by the Cornpanies and A.llied Matters Act of Nigeria, the Financial Reporting

Act, 2011, the Banks and Other Financial Institutions Act of Nigeria, Supervisory and

Regulatory Framework for N{icrofinllce Banks in Nigeria, and relevant Central Bank of

Nigeria circulars, a1d for such internal control as the Directors determine is neoessary to enable

thc preparation of financial statements that are lree from inaterial misstatement whether due to

fraut] or error.

zL rr d ito r' s ItesponsibilifJ

Our responsibitit5r is to express alt opirrion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We concluctecl our audit in accorclance with International Standards on Aucliting. Those

staldarcls require that we comply with ethical requirements ancl plan and perform the

audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are flee from material

misstatement

An auclit involves perfbrming proced,.res to obtain audit evidence about the amounts ancl

disclosgres i1 the financial statements. The procedures seiected depencl on the auditor's

judgmelt, inclucling the assessmqnt of the risks of material misstatement of the financial

statements, rvhethel. due to fraucl cr error. In nraking tliose risk assesslaents, the auditor

22
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INT'INITY MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED

considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the

financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting

policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as

evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Infinity

Microfinance BankLimited as at 31 December 2022, and of its financial performance and cash

flows for the year then ended which were prepared in accordance with International Financial

Reporting Standards arid in the manner required by the Companies and Allied lVlatters Act CAP C20

LFN 2020 as amended, the Banks and Other Financial Institutions Act of Nigeria 2020, Central

Bank of Nigeria Regulatory and Supervisory Framework for Microfinance Banks in Nigeria and

relevant Central Bank of Nigeria circular.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Compliance with the requirements of Schedule 6 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act CAP C20

LFN 2020 as amended.

In our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by Infinity Mioofinance Bard< Limited, so

far as appears from our examination of those books and the Company's Statement of Financial

Position and Statement of Comprehensive Income are in agreement with the books of accounts.

Contraventions

The Bank did not contravene any section relating to Bank Loans during the financial year.

Related Party Transactions

There no related party transactions during the year

Olufem e

F RC NO. : FRC/2013/ICAN/00000001813
Olu Aladejebi & Co.

(Chartered Accountants)
Lagos, Nigeria
9 February,2023
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STATEMBNT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FOR THE YBAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Assets

Cash ancl cash equivalents

Loans and advances

- Equity Investment

- Treasury Bills
Other assets

Property Plant and equipment

Notes

2022
N

609,846,595

2,660,272,760

26,799,055

91,770,445
184,578,527

223,535,416

2A2l
N

685,972,432

2,1,14,742,577

14,590i,918

82,989,620

116,660,395

107,753,729

4

5

6

7

8

9

Total assets 3,796,802,899 3,122,709,612

Liabilities:
Deposit liabilities

Deposit for shares

Current tax liabilities
Term loans

Other liabilities

10

11

12

13

1,147,790,648

35,023,500

11,016,537

1,076,611,021

125,170,469

970,821,890

35,023,500

19,578,957

836,89L,972

128,956,959

Total liabilities 2,395,612,174 1,991,273,278

Net assets 1,401.,L90,725 1,131,436,335

Equity:
Share capital

Retained eamings

Other reserves

t4
15

l6

770,905,670

904,r59,540

386,125,253

110,905,670

668,340,501

352,190,164

Total equity attributable to equity holders

of the Company 1,40L,190,725 1,131,436,335

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors on Febru^W 9,

Mr. Samuel John Chinedrt
Head of Account
FRC NO. : FRC/201 5/IC.A.N/00000012819

Gabriel O. Adewunmi
Ir4anaging Director
FRC NO.: FRC|20L4|CIBN/00000007238

Pastor Bimbo Josiah-Ajayi- 
Chailman

FRC NO.: FRC/2020/003/00000020435

4
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INFINITY MICROFINANCB BANI( LIMITED

STATEMENT OII COMPREHENSIVD INCOME

FOR TIIB YBAR BNDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

2022

N

2021

F+

Interest income

lnterest expense

Net interest income

Fee and comnrission income

Operating income

Impairment loss on financial assets

Other Known Losses

Depreciation expenses

Personnel exponses

Other operating expenses

Profit before income tax

Provision For Tax

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income, net of income tax

Fair value gains(losses) on available for sale

investments

Other cornprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

269,272,574 185,641,889

t7 1,010,005,277

(161,977,637)

792,274,251

(139,511,958)18

l9

sii

9

20

21

848,827,640

159,698,773

652,762,294

123,441,302

L,007,726,413

(31,274,897)

(41,555,684)

(409,195,267)

(239,427,991)

776,203,596

(16,555,975)

(26,597,000)

(36,785,397)

(307,884,781)

(187,738,555)

286,272,574

(17,000,000)

20a,641,889

(15,000,000)

2,248,137

27L,480,711 185,641,889

Barnings per share - basic (kobo) 22 122

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidatedfinancial stateruents

84
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INFINITY N{ICRQFINANCtr BANI( LIMITEI)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR TI{E YBAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Notes

Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit for the period:

Tax expense

Profit after tax
Adjustrnents for:
Depreciation of property and equipment

Other Adjustment
hnpairment on financial assets

Other Known Losses

Changes in assets/liabilities
Loans and advances 5

Available-for-sale securities 6

Held to maturity securities 7

Other Investments

Other assets 8

Deposit liabilities 10

Depost for shares

Current Tax Liabilities 11

Term loans 12

Other liabilities 13

Net cash (used in) / from operating activities before tax
Tax Paid
Net cash (used in) / from operating activities
after tax
Cash flows from investing activities:

286,272,574 20a,641,889
(15,000,000)(17,00 0,000)

269,272,574 185,641,889

2022
+*

2021
N

9 4r,555,68+

5ii (31,274,897)

36,785,397
(25,757,669)
(16,555,975)

e5;21p99_
279,553,361

(545,530,243)
(12,208,137)

(8,780,825)

(67,91,8,132)

176,968,758

(8,562,420)
239,719,049
(3,786,491)
49,454,919

(29,176,710)

2Ar2781209

153,516,641

(272,534,789)
(10,000,000)
(3,971,620)

(6,549,1 85)

73,999,410

9,781,154
177,1,00,305

47,285,759

167,627,675
(12,000,000)

155,627,675

Purchase of and

Net cash used / from in

Cash flows from financing activities:

Other Reserves

Taxation Arrears

activities
9 147

16 33,935,089

17

1 507

42,617,236

1

Net cash used activities 57 7

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (76,125,738) 196,736,932

Cash and.casF eqpivalents at begin+ing of year 685,972,{32 4FP,73.{,,500

Cash a.nd castr equivalentf at-end of ye?r 609,846,69-5 685,9?2.432

fi47 (16.507.979)
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INIIINITY MICROFINANCE BANI( T.,IMITED

NOTBS TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

1.0 Reporting entity

The Bank was licensed by Central Bank of Nigeria on 23 October 2007 to operate microfinance

banking ancl provide microfinance services to customers through its Head Office and subsequently

approved cash centres.

The Bank was incorporated on 09 August 2007 as private aompany limited by shares and

commenced operations in November 2007.

The Microfinance Bank's principal activity is to carry on business as a microfinance bank, providing

financial service to micro, small and medium scale enterprises and other low income people in

Nigeria in the form of working capital and loans. The Microfinance bank is eligible to accept

deposits fiom individuals, groups and private organizations and also raise finance in accordance with

the CBN regulations and guidelines on micro finance banks.

Basis of preparation

1.1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with lnternational Financial Reporting

Standards (IFRSs, as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and adopted by

the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria.

The Financial statements were authorized for issue by the directors on February 9,2023.

1.2 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Nigerian Naira, which is the Bank's functional currency.

Except as otherwise indicated, financial information presented in Naira has been rounded to the

nearest naira.

1.3. Going concern

The Bank's management has made an assessment of its ability to continue as a going concern and is

satisfied that it has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future.
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Furthermore, management is not aware of any rnaterial uncertainties that may cast signihcant doubt

upon the bank's ability to sontinue as a going concefl1. Therefore, the financial statements continue to

be prepared on the going concern basis,

1.4 New and revised IFRSs/IFRICs affecting amounts reported and/or disclosures in these

financial statements

In the curent year, the Bank has applied a number of amendments to IFRSs issued by the

International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) that are mandatorily effective for an accounting

period that begins on or after 1 January 2420.

i. IFRS 9 Financial Instrument

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS9 Financial Instruments that replaces IAS39

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and all previous versions of IFRS9. IFRS9

brings together all three aspects of the accounting for the financial instruments project: classification

and measurement; impairment; and hedge accounting. IFRS9 is effective for annual periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2020,with early application permiued, Except for hedge accounting,

retrospective application is required, but providing comparative information is not compulsory. For

hedge accounting, the requirements are generally applied prospectively, with some limited

exceptions.

Classification and measurement

IFRS 9 replaces the multiple classification and measurement models in IAS 39 with a single model

that has only three classification categories: amortised cost, fair value through OCI and fair value

through profit or loss. It includes the guidance on accounting for and presentation of financial

liabilities and derecognition of financial instruments which was previously in IAS 39.

Furthermore, for non-derivative financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss, it

requires that the credit risk component of fair value gains.and losses be separated and included in

OCI rather than in the income statement.

Impairment

IFRS 9 also requires that credit losses expected at the balance sheet clate (rather than only losses

incnrred in the year) on loans, debt securities and loan commitrnents not held at fair value through

profit or loss be reflected in impairment allowances.

29
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tledge accounting

The Bank does not expect any impact as a result of applying IFRS 9.

ii. IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In IVIay 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, effective for

periods beginning on 1. January 2020 with early adoption permitted. IFRS 15 defines principles

fbr recognising revenue and will be applicable to all contracts with customers.

However, interest and fee income integral to financial instruments and leases will continue to fall

outside the scope of IFRS 15 and will be regulated by the other applicable standards (e.g., IFRS 9,

and IFRS 16 Leases). Revenue under IFRS 15 will need to be recognised as goods and services are

transferred, to the extent. that the transferor anticipates entitlement to goods and services. The

standard also specifies a comprehensive set of disclosure requirements regarding the nature, extent

and timing as well as any uncertainty of revenue and the coresponding cash flows with customers.

2.4 Basis of measurement

These financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except those financial assets and

financial liabilities that have been rneasured at fair value.

2.1 Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make

judgments, estimates and assumptions that afflect the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on

historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the.

circumstances, the results of which form the basis of malcing the judgments about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not reaclily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from

these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to

accounting estimates are recognisecl in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision

affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods, if the revision affects both

current and future periods.
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Juclgments made by management in the application of IFRSs that have significant effect on the

financial statements ancl estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment are discussed in note

3.37

2,2 Changes in accounting policies

The Bank applied for the first time certain standards ancl amendments, which are effective for annual

periods beginning on or after 1 .Tanuary 2021. The Bank has not early adoptecl any standard,

interpretation or amenclment that has been issued but is not yet effective.

The nature and the effect of these changes are disclosed below:

i. IFRS 9 Financial instruments

The following assessments have been made on the basis of the facts and circumstances that

existed at the clate of initial application:

o The determination of the business model within which a financial asset is held.

o The designation of certain investments in equity instruments not held for trading at

FVOCI.

If a risk free and gilt edged debt instrument had low credit risk at the date of initial application of

IFRS 9, then the Bank has assumed that uedit risk on the asset had not increased significantly since

initial recognition.

Investments in financial assets are classified as either debt or equity investments in accordance with

IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.

The Bank adopts the general expected credit loss (ECL) model for loans and advances to'customers,

other debt instruments measured at amofiized cost, and debt instrurnents measure{ at fair value

through other comprehensive income. ECL model is not applied to equity instruments.

The Bank applies the simplified approach in the recognition and measurement of impairment losses

on contract assets and trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component.

The key changes to the Bank's accounting policies r.sriting from its adoption of IFRS 9 arc

summarized below:
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Classifications of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Bank classifles its financial assets as subsequently measured at either amortized cost or fair

value depending on the Bank's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual

cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

The following summarizes the key changes:

o The held-to-matuity and available-for-sale financial assets categories were removed.

o A new asset category measured at farlr value tlrough other comprehensive income (FVOCD

was introduced. This applies to debt instruments with contractual cash flow characteristics

that are solely payments of principal and interest and held in a business model whose

objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets,

o A new asset category for non-traded equity investments measured at FVOCI was introduced.

o Derivatives embedded in contracts where the host is a furancial asset in the scope of IFRS 9,

are never bifurcated. Instead, the whole hybrid instrument is assessed for classification.

Classification of financial liabilities remained largely unchanged for the Bank. Financial liabilities

continue to be measured at either amortized cost or FVTPL. I{owever, although under IAS 39 all fair

value changes of liabilities designated under the fair value option were recognized in income

statement, under IFRS 9 fair value changes are generally presented as follows:

o The amount of changes in the fair value that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of the

liability is presented in OCI; and

o The remaining amount of change in the fair value is presented in income statement.

Impairment of financial assets

IFRS 9 impairment requirements are based on an expected credit loss model, replacing the incuned

loss model under IAS 39. Key changes in the Bank's accounting policy for impairment of financial

assets are listed below.

The Bank applies a three-stage approach to measuring ,expected credit losses (ECL) oq debt

instruments accounted for at amortized cost and FVOCL Assets migrate through the following three

stages based on the change in credit quality since initial recognition:

i. Stage 1: l2-months ECL

For exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition

and that are not credit-impaired upon origination, the portion of the lifetime ECL associated with the

i
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probability of default events occurring within the next 12 months is recognized. Interest revenue is

calctrlated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount,

ii. Stage 2: Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired

For credit exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition

but are not credit-impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognized. Interest revenue is calculated by applying

the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount.

iii.stage 3: Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired

Financial assets are assessecl as credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental

impact on the estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred. As this uses the same criteria

as under LA.S 39, the Bank's methodology for specific provisions remains unchanged. For financial

assets that have become creclit- the effective interest rate to the amortized cost rather than the gross

carrying amount.

At each reporting date, the Bank assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk

for financial assets since initial recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring over the

expectecl life between the reporting date and the date of initial recognition.

In determining whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Bank uses

its internal credit risk grading system, external risk ratings and forecast information to assess

deterioration in credit quality of a financial asset.

The Bank assesses whether the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly on an

individual or collective basis. For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial

assets are grouped on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics, taking into account instrument

type, credit risk ratings, date of initial recognition, remaining term to maturity, industry, geographical

location of the borrower and other relevant factors.

The amount of ECL is measured as the probability-weighted present value of all cash shortfalls over

the expected life of the financial asset discounted at its original effective interest rate. The cash

shortfall is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Bank and all the cash

flows that the Bank expects to receive. The amount of the loss is recognizecl using an allowance for

credit loss account.

.{
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The Bank considers its historical loss experience and adjusts this for current observable data.

In addition, the Bank uses reasonable and supportable forecasts of fufure economic conditions

including experienced judgment to estimate the amount of an expected impairment loss.

Notes to the financial statements

IFRS 9 introduces the use of macroeconomic factors which include, but is not limited to,

unemployment, interest rates, gross domestic product, inflation and commercial property prices, and

requires an evaluation of both the current and forecast direction of the economic cycle. Incorporating

forward looking information inueases the level of judgment as to how changes in these

lnacroeconomic factors will affect ECL. The methodology and assumptions inch,tding any forecasts

of flrture economic conditions are reviewed regularly.

If, in a subsequent period, credit quality improves and reverses any previously assessed significant

increase in credit risk since origination, depending on the stage of the lifetime2 or stage 3 of the

ECL bucket, the Bank would continue to monitor such financial assets for a probationary period of

90 days to confirm ifthe risk ofdefault has decreased sufficiently before upgrading such exposure

from Lifetime ECL (Stage 2)to l2-months ECL (Stage 1).

In addition to the 90 days probationary period above, the Bank also observes a further probationary

period of 90 days to upgrade from Stage 3 to 2. This means a probationary period of 180 days will be

observecl before upgrading financial assets from Lifetime ECL (Stage 3) to l2-months ECL

(Stage 1).

In the case of the new asset category for debt instruments measwed at FVOCI, the measurement of

ECL is based on the three-stage approach as applied to financial assets at amortized cost. The Bank

recognizes the impairment charge in income statement, with the corresponding amount recognized in

other comprehensive income, with no reduction in the carrying amount in the statement of financial

position.

Overall, impairment under IFRS 9 results in earlier recognition of credit losses than under IAS

39. For explanation of how the Bank applies the impairment requirements of IFRS 9, see Note 4

in the financial statements
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2.3 X'inancial instruments

,A. financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial

liability or equity instrument of another entity. The Bank appliecl the classification and measurement

requirements for financial instruments under IFRS 9 'Financial Instrutments' for the year ended 31

December 2022. The 2021 comparative period was not restated, and the requirements under IAS 39

'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement' were applied. The key changes are in the

classification and impairment requirements.

2.3.1 Recognition and initial measurement

All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Bank

becomes aparty to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The Bank uses trade date accounting

for regular way contracts when recorcling financial assets transactions.

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fafu value plus or minus, for an item not

at fair value through profit or loss, direct and incremental transaction costs that are directly

attributable to its acquisition or issue. Transaction costs of financial assets and liabilities carried at

fair value through profit or loss are expensed in income statement at initial recognition.

2.3.2 Classification of financial instruments

The Bank classifies its financial assets under IFRS 9, into the following measurement categories:

o those to be measured at fair value either through other comprehensive income, or through

profit or loss; ancl

o those to be measured at amortized cost.

The classification depencls on the Bank's business model (i.e. business model test) for managing

finanoial assets and the contractual terms of the financial assets cash flows (i.e. solely payments of

principal and interest - SPPI test).

The Bank also classifies its financial liabilities as liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and

liabilities at amortized cost. Management determines the classification of the financial instruments at

initial recognition.

V
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Policy applicable prior to L January 2022

The Bank classifies its financial assets in the following categories: loans and receivables and held to

maturity financial asssts. Management determines the classification of financial assets and liabilities

at the time of initial recognition and the classification is dependent on the nature and purpose of the

financial assets.

2.3.3 Subsequent measurements

a. Financial assets - policy applicable from 1 January

i. Debt instruments

The srrbsequent measurement of financial assets depends on its initial classification:

Amortized cost: A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following

conditions ancl is not designated as at FVTPL:

. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect

contractual cash flows; and

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified clates to cash flows that are

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The gain or loss on a debt instrument that is subsequently measured at amortized cost and is not part

of a hedging relationship is recognized in income statement when the asset is derecognized or

impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is determined using the effective interest

method and reported in income statement as 'Interest income'.

The amortizecl cost of a financial inshument is defined as the amount at which it was measured at

initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the

'effective interest method' of any difference between that initial amount and the matrrity amount, and

minus any loss allowance. The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized

cost of a financial instrument (or group of instruments) and of allocating the interest income or

expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rute is the rate that exactly discounts

estimatecl future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the instrument or, when

appropriate, a shorter period, to the instrument's net carrying amount

Fair value through other comprehensive-income (FVOCI): Investment in debt instrument is measured

at FVOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at

FVTPL:
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the asset i,s helcl within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting

contractual cash.flov,s and sellingfinancial assets; and

the contractual terms of thefinancial asset give rise on specified dates to cashflows that are

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstonding.

The debt instrument is subsequently measured at fair value. Gains ancl losses arising from changes in

fair value are included in other comprehensive income within a separate component of equity.

Impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in

profit and loss. Upon disposal or derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in

OCI is reclassified from equity to income statement and recognized in net gains on investment

securities while the cumulative impairment loss recognized in the OCI and accumulated in equity

will be reclassified and credited to income statement. Interest income from these financial assets is

determined using the effective interest method ancl recognized in income statement as 'Interest

income'.

The measurement of credit impairment is based on the three-stage expected credit loss model as

applied to financial assets at amortized cost. The expected credit loss model is described further

below:

o Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for

amortized cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value tluough profit or loss. The gain or loss

arising from changes in fair value of a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair

value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is included directly in the

' income statement and reported as 'Net gainsl(losses) from financial instruments held for

trading in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is.

recognized in income statement as'Interest income'.

ii Bquity instruments

The Bank subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. For equity investment that is

not held for trading, the Bank may inevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value in

OCI. This election is made on an investment-by investment basis. Where the Bank's management has

elected to present fair value gains and los-ses on equity investments in other comprehensive income,

there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to income statement.

Dividends from such investments continue to be recognized in income statement as dividend income

when the company's right to receive payments is established unless the dividend clearly represents a

J/
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recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Changes in tlre fair value of fiuancial asggts at fair

value tluough profit or loss are recognized in Net gains/ (losses) from financial instnunents held for

trading.

All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL. In addition, on initial recognition, the

Bank may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be

measured at arnortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces

an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

2,3.4. Relassifications

The Bank reclassifies financial assets when and only when its business model for managing those

assets changes. The reclassification takes place from the start of the first reporting period following

the change. Such changes.are expected to be very infrequent and must be significant to the Bank's

operations.

When reclassification occurs, the Bank reclassifies all affected financial assets in accordance with the

new business model. Reclassification is applied prospectively from the 'reclassification date'.

Reclassification date is 'the first day of the first reporting period following the change in business

model. Gains, losses or interest previously recognizecl are not restated when reclassification occurs.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after

the Bank changes its business model for managing financial assets that are debt instnrments. A

change in the objective of the Bank's business occurs only when the Bank either begins or ceases to

perform an activity that is significant to its operations (e.g., via acquisition or disposal of a business

line).

The following are not considered to be changes in the business model:

r A change in intention related to particular financial assets (even in circumstances of

significant changes in market conditions)

o A temporary disappearance of a particular market for financial assets

o A transfer of financial assets between parts of the entity with different business models

When reclassification occurs, the Bank reclassifies all affected financial assets in accordance with the

new business model. Reclassification is applied prospectively from the 'reclassification date'.

Reclassification date is 'the first day of the first reporting period following the change in business

model. Gains, losses or interest previously recognized are not restated when reclassification occurs,

l
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Financial liabilities are not reclassified after initial classification.

Financial assets under the amortizerl cost classification (i.e. business model whose objective is to

collect the contractual cash flows) can still be held as such even when there are sales within the

portfolio as long as the sales are infrequent (even if significant in value) or insignificant in value both

individually and in aggregate (even if frequent).

However, if more than an infrequent number of such sales are made out of a portfolio and those sales

are more than insignificant in value (either individually or in aggregate), the Barrk will assess

whether and how such sales are consistent with an objective of collecting contractual cash flows.

The Bank has clefinecl the following factors which will be considered in conclucling on the

significance and frequency of sale:

Definition of Insignificance: For financial assets within the hold to collect (HTC) portfolio,

Infinity's management considers the sale of assets within this portfolio as insignificani if the

total sales constittrte a value that is less than or equal to 20o/o of the current amortized cost

portfolio in a year

Definition of Infrequent: The Bank's definition of infrequent sale as it relates to financial

instruments within the HTC portfolio will be based on the number of sales within a year.

Infinity's management has decided that any sales not more than five times a ye$ would be

considered as an infrequent sale.

Definition of Closeness to maturity: Infinity's management defines close to maturity as

instruments with less than three months to maturity.

a

O

a

2.3.5 Modifications of financial assets and financial liabilities

i. Financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Bank evaluates whether the cash flows of the

modified asset are substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially different, then the

contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial 4sset are deemed to have expired. In this

case, the original financial asset is derecognized and a new financial asqet is recognized at fair value.

Any difference between the amortized cost and the present value of the estimated future cash flows

of the modified asset or consideration received on derecognition is recorded as a separate line item in

income statements as 'gains and losses arising from the cle-recognition of financial assets measurecl at

amortized cost'.

l
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Financial liabilities are not reclassified after initial classification.

Financial assets under the amortized cost classification (i.e. business model whose objective is to

collect the contractual cash flows) can still be held as such even when there are sales within the

portfolio as long as the sales are infrequent (even if significant in value) or insignificant in value both

individually and in aggregate (even if frequent).

However, if more than an infrequent number of such sales are made out of a portfolio and those sales

are more than insignificant in value (either individually or in aggregate), the Barrk will assess

whether ancl how such sales are consistent with an objective of collecting contractual cash flows.

The Bank has clefinecl the following factors which will be considered in conclucling on the

significance and frequency of sale:

Definition of Insignificance: For financial assets within the hold to collect (HTC) portfolio,

Infinity's management considers the sale of assets within this portfolio as insignificant if the

total sales constitute a value that is less than or equal to 20Yo of the current amortized cost

portfolio in a year

Definition of Infrequent: The Bank's definition of infrequent sale as it relates to financial

instruments within the HTC portfolio will be basecl on the number of sales within a year.

Infinity's management has decided that any sales not more than five times a yea.r would be

considered as an infrequent sale.

Definition of Closeness to maturity: Infinity's management defines close to maturity as

instruments with less than three months to maturity.

a

o

a

2.3.5 Modifications of financial assets and financial liabilities

i. Financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Bank evaluates whether the cash flows of the

modified asset are substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially different, then the

contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial 4sset are deemecl to have expired. In this

case, the original financial asset is derecognized and a new financial asget is recognized at fafu value.

Any clifference between the amortized cost and the present value of the estimated future cash flows

of the modified asset or consideration received on derecognition is recorded as a separate line item in

income statements as 'gains and losses arising from the cle-recognition of financial assets mepsurecl at

amortized cost'.

/
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If the cash flows of the rnodified asset caffied at amortized cost are not substantially different, then

the moclification cloes not result in de-recognition of the financial asset. In this case, the Bank

recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset as the present value of tlre renegotiated

or rnodifiecl contractual cash flows that are discounted at the financial assetrs original effective

interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired

financial assets). The amorurt arising from adjusting the gross calrying amount is recognized as a

modification gain or loss in income statement as part of impainnent:charge for the year.

In determining when a modification to terms of a financial asset is substantial or not to the existing

terms, the Bank will consider the following non-exhaustive criteria.

Qualitative criteria

Scenarios where modifications could lead to de-recognition of existing loan and recognition of a new

loan, i.e. substantial modification, are:

o Extension of financial asset's tenor

o Reduction in repayment of principals ancl interest

. Capitalization of overdue repayments into a new principal amount

. Change in fiequencl, of repayments i.e. change of nionthly repayments to quarterly or yearly

repayments

r lleduction of linancial asset's tenor

On occurrence of any of the above factors, the Bank will perform a 10Yo test (see below) to

determine whether or not the rnodification is substantial.

Scenarios where modification will not lead to de-recognition of existing financial assets are:

o Change in interest rate arising from a change in MPR which is the benchmark rate that drives

borrowing rates in Nigeria

o Bulk repayment of financial asset

Quantitative criteria

A modification would lead to de-recognition of existing financial asset and recognition of a new

financial asset, i.e. substantial modification, if:

o The discounted present value of the cash flows under the new terms, including any fees

received net of any fees paicl and discounted using the original effective interest rate, is at

I

40



Ieast 10 per cent clifferent from the cliscounted present value of the remaining cash flows of

the original financial asset.

A modification would not lead to de-recognition of existing financial asset if:

e the discotrnted present value of the cash flows under the new terms, inclurding any fees

received net of any fees paid and discounted using the original effective interest rate, is less

than 10 per cent different from the discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of

the original financial asset.

If the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or modified or an existing financial asset is replaced

with a new one due to financial difficulties of the borrower, then an assessment is made of whether

the financial asset shoulcl be derecognized (see below) and ECL are measured as follows:

o If the expected restructuring will not result in de-recognition of the existing 4sset, then the

expected cash flows arising from the modified financial asset are included in calculating the

cash shortfalls from the existing asset

o If the expected restructuring will result in de-recognition of the existing asset, then the

expectecl fair value of the new asset is treated as the final cash flow from the existing

financial asset at the time of its de-recognition. This amount is includecl in calculating the

cash shortfalls from the existing financial asset that are discounted from the expected date of

de-recognition to the reporting date using the original effective interest rate of the existing

financial asset.

Modification gain or loss shall be included as part of impairment charge for each financial year.

ii Financial liabilities

The Bank de-recognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the

modified liability are substantially different. This occurs when the discounted present value of the

cash flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received and discounted

using the original effective interest rate, is at least 10 per cent different from the discounted present

value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial liability. In this case, a new financial

liabitity based on the modified terms is recognized at fair value. The difference between the carrying

amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is

recognized in income statement. If an-exchange of debt instruments or modification of terms is

accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred are recognized as part of the gain or

loss on the extinguishment. If the exchange or modification is not accounted for as an

I
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extinguishment (i.e. the modified liability is not substantially different), any costs or fees incurred

adjust the carrying amount of the liability and are amortized over the remaining tenn of the moclified

liability

2.3.6 Impairment of financial assets

a. Overview of the ECL principles

The Bank recognizes allowance for expected credit losses for all loans and other debt financial assets

not held at FVPL, together with loan commitments ancl financial guarantee eontracts, in this section

all referrecl to as'financial instruments'. Equity instruments are not subjoct to impairment under

IFRS 9.

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the

lifetime expected credit loss or LTECL), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk

since origination, in which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months' expected credit loss

(l2mECL) as outlined. The Bank's policies for determining if there has been a significant increase in

credit risk are set out in Note 4 in the pro-forma financial statements.

The l2mECL is the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a

financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. Both LTECLs

and l2mECLs are calculated on either an individual basis or a collective basis, depending on the

nature of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments. The Bank's policy for grouping financial

assets measured on a collective basis is explained in Note 4 in the financial statements.

Loss allowances for accounts receivable are always measued at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.

The Bank has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of

whether a financial instrument's credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by

considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining life of the financial

instrument.

Based on the above process, the Bank groups its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2, Stage 3 and POCI, as

described below:

I Stage 1: When loans are first recognized, the Bank recognizes an allowance based on

l2mECLs. Stage 1 loans also include facilities where the credit risk has improved and the

loan has been reclassifiecl from Stage 2.-

)
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. Stage 2: when a loan has shown a significant increase in uedit risk since origination, the

Bank records an allowance for the LTECLs. Stage 2 loans also inplude facilities, where the

creclit risk has improved ancl the loan has been reclassified from Stage 3.

. Stage 3: Loans considered credit-impaired. The BanJ< records an allowance for the LTECLs.

o pOCI: purchased or originated credit impaired (POCD assets are financial assets that are

creclit impaired on initial recognition. POCI assets are recorded at fair value at original

recognition and interest income is subsequently recognized based on a credit adjustecl EIR'

ECLs are only recognized or released to the extent that there is a subsequent change in the

expected credit losses.

If, in a subsequent period, credit quality improves and reverses any previously assessed significant

increase in credit risk since origination, depending on the stage of the lifetime 2 or stage 3 of the

ECL bucket, the Banl< would continue to monitor such financial assets for a probationary period of

90 days to confirm if the risk of default has decreased sufficiently before upgrading such exposure

from Lifetime ECL (Stage 2)to l2-months ECL (Stage 1)'

In addition to the 90 clays probationary period above, the Bank also observes a further probationary

period of 90 days to upgrade from Stage 3 to 2. This means a probationary period of 180 days will be

observed before upgracling financial assets frorn Lifetime ECL (Stage 3) to l2-months ECL

(Stage 1).

For financial assets for which the Banl< has no reasonable expectations of recovering either the entire

outstancling amount, or a proportion thereof, the gross carrying amount of the financial asset is

recluced. This is considered a (partial) derecognition of the financial asset.

b. The calculation of ECLs

The Bank calculates ECLs basecl on a three probability-weighted scenarios to measure the expected

cash shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the EIR. A cash shortfall is the difference between

the cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the

entity expects to receive.

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are as follows:

o pD: The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a- Eiven time

horizon. A clefautt may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility

has not been previously dereco gnized and is still in the portfolio.
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a EAD: The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a futrue default date, tating

into account expected changes in the exposue after the reporting date, including repayments

of principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected draw clowns

on committed facilities, and accrued interest from missed payments.

LGD: The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a ctefault

occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due

and those that the lender would expect to receive, including from the realization of any

collateral. It is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

a

When estimating the ECLs, the Bank considers three scenarios (a base case, an upside and

downside). Each of these is associated with different PDs, EADs and LGDs, as set out in Note 4 in

the financial statements. When relevant, the assessment of multiple scenarios also incorporates how

defaultecl loans are expected to be recovered, including the probability that the loans will cure and

the value of collateral or the amount that might be received for selling the asset.

Impairment losses and releases are accounted for and disclosed separately from modification losses

or gains that are accounted for as an adjustment of the financial asset's gross ciurying value.

The mechanics of the ECL method are summartzedbelow:

o Stage 1: The 12mECL is calculated as the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that

result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months

after the reporting date. The Bank calculates the 12mECL allowance based on the expectation

of a default occurring in the 12 months following the reporting date. These expected 12-

month default probabilities are applied to a forecast EAD and multiplied by the expected

LGD and discounted by an approximation to the original EIR. This calculation is made for

each ofthe four scenarios, as explained above.

o Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the

Bank records an allowance for the LTECLs. The mechanics are similar to those explained

above, including the use of multiple scenarios, but PDs and LGDs are estimated over the

lifetime of the instrument. The expected cash shortfalls are discounted by an approximation

to the original EIR.

o Stage 3: For loans considered credit-impaired, the Bank recognizes the lifetime expected

credit losses for these loans. The method is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set

at 100%.

o POCI: POCI assets are financial assets that are credit impaired on initial recognilion. The

Bank only recognizes the cnrnulative changes in lifetime ECLs since initial recognition,
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based on a probability-weighting of the three scenarios, discounted by the credit-adjusted

EIR,

c. Debt instruments measured at fair value througlt OCI

The ECLs for debt instruments measruecl at FVOCI elo not recluce the carrying amount of these

financial assets in the statement of financial position, which remains at fair value. Instead, an amount

equal to the allowance that woulcl arise if the assets were measured at amortized cost is recognized in

OCI as an accumulated impairment amount, with a corresponding charge to profit or loss. The

accumulatecl loss recognized in OCI is recycled to the profit and loss upon derecognition of the

assets.

d. Purchased or originated credit impaired financial assets (POCI)

At each reporting date, the Bank assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost and debt

financial assets carried at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is'credit impaired'when one

or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated fuhrre cash flows of the financial

asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

. Significant financial difficulty of the bonower or issuer;

o A breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

o The restructuring of a loan or advance by the Bank on terms that the Bank would not consider

otherwise;

' o It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganization; or

o The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

A loan that has been renegotiated due to a deterioration in the borrower's condition is usually

considered to be credit-impaired unless there is evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual

cash flows has reduced significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment.

For POCI financial assets, the Bank only recognizes the cumulative changes in LTECL since initial

recognition in the loss allowance. Loans that are more than 30 clays past due are considered impaired.

J
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e. Collateral valuation

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Bank seeks to utse collateral, where possible. The

collateral comes in various forms, such as cash, landed properties and vehicles.

The Bank's accounting policy for collateral assigned to it through its lending arrangements under

IFRS 9 is tlre same is it was uncler IAS 39. Collateral, unless repossessed, is not recorded on the

Bank's statement of financial position.

However, the fair value of collateral affects the calculation of ECLs. It is generally assessed, at a

minimum, at inceptiol and re-assessed on periodic basis as deemed necessary. To the extent

possible, the Bank uses active market data for valuing financial assets held as collateral. Other

financial assets which do not have readily determinable market values are valued using models.

f. Csllateral repossessed

The Bank's accounting policy under IFRS 9 remains the same as it was under IAS 39. The Bank's

policy is to determine whether a repossessed asset carr.. be best used for its internal operations or

shoulcl be solcl. Assets determined to be useful for the internal operations are transferred to their

relevant asset category at the lower of their repossessed value or the carrying value of the original

secured asset. Assets for which selling is determined to be a better option are transferred to assets

held for sale at their fair value (if financial assets) and fair value less cost to sell for non-financial

assets at the repossession date in, line with the Bank's policy.

In its normal course of business, the Bank does not physically repossess properties or other assets in

its loan portfolio, but engages external agents to recover funds, generally at auction, to settle

.ogtstanding debt. Any surplus funcls are returned to the customers/obligors. As a result of this

practice, the residential properties under legal repossession processes are not recorded on the balance

sheet.

g. Forborne and modified loans

The Bank sometimes makes concessions or modifications to the original terms of loans as a response

to the borrower's financial difficulties, rather than taking possession or to otherwise enforce

collection of collateral.

The Bank considers a loan forborne when such concessions or modifications are provided as a result

of the borrower's present or expected financial difficulties and the Bank would not have agreed to

them if the borrower hacl been financially healthy. Indicators of financial diffictrlties include defaults

on covenants, or significant concerns raised by the Credit Risk Department.
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Forbearance may involve oxtending the payment arrangements and the agreement of new loan

conditions. once the terms rrave been renegotiated, any impairment is measured using the original

EIR as carc*lated before the modification of terms. It is the Bank's policy to monitor forborne l0ans

to help ensure that future payments continue to be likely to occur'

De-rebognition decisions and classification between stage 2 and stage 3 are determined on a case-

by-case basis. If trrese proced*res identify a loss in relation to a loan, it is disclosed and managed as

an impaired Stage 3 forborne asset until it is collected or ruritten off. This is explained in Note 2'1'5

above.

From 1 January zozL,when the roan has been renegotiated or modified but not de-recegnised, the

Bank also reassesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. The Bank also

considers whether the assets shoulcl be crassified as stage 3. Once an asset has been classified as

forborne, it wil remain forborne for a minimum 12-month probation periocl. In order for the loan to

be recrassified out of the forborne category, the customer has to meet arl of the following criteria:

o A11 of its facilities has to be considered performing;

. Th9 probation period required from the date the forborne contract was considered performing

has Passed (see above);

Regular payments of more than an insignificant amount of principal or interest have been made

cluring at least half of the probation period;

o The customer does not have any contract that is more than 180 days past due. If modifications

are substantial, the loan is derecognized. If the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or

moclified or an existing financial asset is replaced with a new one due to financial difficulties

oftheborrower,thenanassessmentismadeofwhetherthefinancialassetshouldbe

derecognized and ECL are measured as follows:

o If the expected reshrrcturing will not result in derecognition of the existing asset' then the

expectecl cash flows arising from the modified financial asset are inclucled in calculating cash

shortfalls from the existing asset;

If the expected restructuring will result in derecognition of the existing asset' then the

expected fair value of the new asset is treated as the final cash flow from the existing

financial asset at the time of its derecognition. This amount is included in calctrlating the cash

shortfalls from the existing financial asset that are c.riscountecl from the expectecl date of
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derecognition to the reporting clate using the original effective interest rate of the existing

financial asset.

h. Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position

Loan allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

e Financial assets measured at amortized cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amourt

ofthe assets;

o Debt instruments measured at FVOCI: no loss allowance is recognized in the statement of

financial position because the carrying amount of these assets is their fair value. However, the

loss allowance is disclosed and is recognized in the fair value reserve.

I. Write-off

After a full evaluation of a non-performing exposure, in the event that either one or all of the

following conditions apply, such exposure is recommencled for write-off (either partially or in full):

o continued contact with the customer is impossible;

. recovery cost is expected to be higher than the outstanding debt;

o amount obtainecl from realization of credit collateral security leaves a balance of the debt or

it is reasonably cletermined that no flirther recovery on the facility is possible.

All creclit facility write-offs require endorsement by the Board Credit and Risk Committee, as

defined by the Bank. credit write-off approval is documented in writing and properly initialed by the

Board Credit and Risk Committee.

A wite-off constitgtes a derecognition event. The wite-off amount is used to reduce the carrying

. amount of the financial asset. However, financial assets that are written off could stil1 be subject to

enforcement activities in order to comply with the Bank's procedures for recovery of amount due'

Whenever amounts are recovered on previously written-off credit exposures, such amount recovered

is recognizecl as income on a cash basis only'

4.0.1 Significant accounting policies

Significant accounting policies are clefinecl as those that are reflective of significant judgements and

uncertainties, and potentially give rise to different results uncler different assumptions and conditions'

The accounting policies set out below have been consistently applied to all periods presented in these

financial statements.

These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented unless otherwise stated.
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4.0.2 Interest

Interest income and expense are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the qstimated future cash payments and

receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or liability (or, where appropriate, a shorter

period) to the carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. When calculating the effective

interest rate, the BanJ< estimates future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial

instruments but not future credit losses.

The effective interest rate is calculated on initial recognition of the financial asset and liability and is

not revised subsequently except as statecl below regarding impaired financial assets.

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes contractual fees paid or received transaction

eosts, and discounts or premiums that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, Transaction

costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a

financial asset or liability.

Interest incomo and expense presented in the statement of comprehensive income include:

Interest on financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost calculated on an effective

interest rate basis. Interest on available-for-sale investment securities calculated on an effective

interest basis

Once a financial asset or bank of similar financial assets have been written down as a result of an

impairment loss, interest income is recognized using the rate of interest used to discount the future

cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Interest income ancl expense on all trading assets and liabilities are considered to be incidental to the

Bank's trading operations and are presented together with all other changes in the fair value of

trading assets and liabilities in net trading income.

Fair value changes on other financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value through profit or less,

are presented in net trading income from other financial instruments and carried at fair value througlr

profit and loss in the statement of lncome.

4.0.3 Fees and commission

Fees and oornmissions are generally recognised on an

provided.

basis when the service has been

Fees and commission income and expenses that are integral to the effective interest: rate on a

financial asset or liability are included in the measurement of the effective interest rate,
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4,0.4 Net trading income

Net trading income comprises gains less losses related to financial assets held for trading or

designated as fair value through profit or loss as well as financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss, and includes all realised and unrealised fair value changes and foreign exchalge

differences.

4.0.5 Dividends

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive income is established.

Dividends on held for trading financial assets are reflected as a component of net trading income,

while dividencl from other financial instruments at fair value through profit and loss are recognized

as part of other operating income based on the underlying classification of the equity investment.

Dividend income on available-for-sale securities are recognised as a component of other operating

income.

4.0.6 Income Tax expense

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognised

in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income

or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognisecl in other comprehensive income or

clirectly in equity, respectively.

4.4,7 Current Tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on taxable income for the year determined in accordance with
the Companies Income tax Act (CITA), using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the

balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Aclditional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognised at the same time

as the liability to pay the related dividend is recognised.

4.0.8 Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary clifferences between the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding Jax bases used in the computation of
taxable proflt. Defered tax is provided for using the balance sheet or liability method. Deferred tax
is not recognised for the following temporary difflerences:

,/ The initial recognition of goodwill; .

'/ The initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business

combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss;
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./ Differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they probably will not

reverse in the foreseeable frrture; and

,/ Differences arising from investment property measured at fafu value whose carrying amount

will tre recovered through use Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be

appliecl to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on laws that have been enacted

or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

A ciefened tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will

be available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each

reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit

will be realised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset

current tax assets against .current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and

liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable

entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

4.0,9 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include notes and coins in hand, unrestricted balances held with central

bank, operating accounts with banks and highly liquid financial assets with original mattrrities of

tluee months or less from the acquisition date, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in

their fair value, and are used by the Bank in the management of its short-term commitments,

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost in the statement of financial position.

4.10 Intangible asset

Software

Software acquirecl by the Bank is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated

impairment losses.

Expenditure on internally developed software is recognised as an asset when the Bank is able to

demonstrate its intention and ability to complete the develogment and use the software in a marmer

that will generate future economic benefits, and can reliably measure the costs to complete the

development. The capitalised costs of internally developed software include all costs clirectly

attributable to developing the software, and are amortised over its useful life.

Internally cleveloped software is stated at capitalised cost less accumulated amortisation and

impairment.
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Sttbsequent expenditule on software assets is capitalised only rvhen it increases the f'utgre economic

benefits embodied in the speciflc asset to rvhich it relates. All other expenditure is expensecl as

incurred.

Amortisation

Amorlisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of
the software, from the date that it is available for use since this most closely reflects the expectecl

pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. The estimatecl useful

life of software is five years.

Amortisation method, useful lives, and residual values are reviewed at each financial yoar-end and

adjusted if appropriate,

De-recognition

An item of intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are

expected from its uso or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated

as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is inclucled

in profit or.loss in the year the asset is derecoguised.

4.ll Provisions

Provisions are liabilities that are uncertain in amount and timing. A provision is recognised if as a

result of a past event, the Bank has a present legal or constructive,obligation that can be estimated

reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the

obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expectecl future cash flows at a pre-tax rate

that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks

specific to the liability. The increase in provision due to passage of time is recognised in "Interest.

expense'.

Provisions recognised by the Bank relates to legal claim against it that are highly probable.

4.12 Employee Benefits

Short-term benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis ancl are expensed as

the related service is provided.

A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid uncler short-temr cash bonus or profit-

sharing plans if the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result

of past service provided by the employee ancl the obligation can be estimatecl reliably.
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Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribgtion plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed

contribution into a separate entrty and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are reoognised as an employee benefit

expense in profit or loss in the period during which the employees have rendered service entitling

them to the contributions. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash

refund or a reduction in future payments is available. Contributions to a defined contribution plan

that is due more than 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the service

are cliscounted to their present value at the reporting date.

The Bank operates a fgnded clefined contribution retirement benefit scheme for its employees under

the provisions of the Pension Reform Act 2004. Employees' *d the Bank's contributions to the

scheme are 7.5a/o and 7.5Yo respectively of each employee's annual basic salary, transport and

housing allowances. Employees' contributions to the scheme are funded tirough payroll deductions

while obligations in respect of the Bank's contribution to the scheme are recognised as an expense in

the profit and loss account on al1 annual basis.

The Bank also operates a definecl contribution insurance scheme. Employees are entitled to join the

scheme on confirmation of their employment. The employee and Bank contributions to the scheme

arc SYo and 12.5% respectively of the employee's annual basic salary, transport and housing

allowance. Employees' contributions to the scheme are funded through payroll deductions while

obligations in respect of the Bank's contribution are charged to the profit and loss account.

4,13 Contingencies

Contingent asset

Contingent Asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be

confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more unoertain future events not

wholly within the control of the entity.

A contingent assets is not recognisecl in the statement finirncial position but is disclosed when an

inflow of economic benefit is probable. When the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the

related asset is not a contingent and its recognition is appropriate.

Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in

the financial statement.
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Contingent Liabilify

Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be

confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain fufure events not

wholly within the control of the entity; or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not

recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will

be required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with

suffi cient reliability.

Contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying

economic benefit is remote. A provision for the part of the obligation for which an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is probable is recognised, except in the extremely rare

circumstances where no reliable estimate can be made.

Contingent liabilities are assessed continually to determine whether an outflow of economic benefit

has become probable.

Commissions and fees chargecl for services rendered are recognised in the accounting periocl in

which the services were rendered.

Revenue is recognised on a straight line basis over the specifled perlod.

4,14 Share capital and reserves

Share issue costs

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of an equity instrument are deducted from the

initial measurement of the equity instruments.

Dividend on ordinary shares

Dividends on the Bank's ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which they are paid

or, if earlier, approved by the Bank's shareholders.

Statutory Reserve

In compliance with regulations of the Central Bank of Nigeria, an appropriation of 15% of profit

after tax is rnade if the statutory reserve is less than the paid-up share capital and 10% of profit after

tax if the statutory reserve is greater than the paid up share capital. For the purposes of making this

appropriation, 'Profit for the year' as reported in the statement of comprehensive income is used. The

appropriation is reportecl in the statement of chdnges in equity.
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Regulatory risk reserve

In compliance with the Prudential Guidelines for Licensed Banks, the Bank assesses qualifying

financial assets using the guidance under the Prudential Guidelines. These apply objective and

subjective criteria towards providing for losses in risk assets. Assets are classed as performing or

non-performing. Non-performing assets are ftirther classecl as Substandard, Doubtftil or Lost with

attendants provision as per the table below based on objective criteria.

Classification Percentage

Provided

Performing l%

Pass and Watch 5%

Substandard 20%

Doubttul 5Q%

Lost l0A%

A more accelerated provision may be done using the subjective criteria. A l% provision is taken on

all risk assets not specifically provisioned.

The results of the application of Prudential Guidelines and the impairment determined for these

assets under IFRS 9 are compa.recl. Where the Prudential Guidelines provision is greater, the

difference is appropriated from Retained Earnings and included in a non-distributable reserve called

"Regulatory Risk Reserve". Where the IFRS 9 impairment is greater, no appropriation is made and

the arnount of the IFRS 9 impairment is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

In subsequent periods, reversals or additional appropriations between the "Regulatory Risk Reserve"

and Retained Earnings to maintain total provisions at the levels expected by the Regulator.

4.15 Earnings per share

The Bank presents ordinary basic earnings per share for its ordinary shares. Basic earning-s per share

are calculated by dividing the profit or loss atkibutable to ofdinary shareholders of the Bank by the

weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Dilutecl EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the

weighted average number of ordinary shares-outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential

ordinary shares.

J
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4,16 Operational Risk Management

Capital management

Regulatory capital

The Central Bank of Nigeria sets and monitors capital requirements for all microfinance banks in

Nigeria. The central bank of Nigeria prescribes the minimum capital requirement for microfinance

banks operating within Nigeria.

In implementing current capital requirements, Central Bank of Nigeria requires the Bank to maintain

a prescribed ratio of total capital to total risk-weighted assets.

Capital Adequacy Ratio

The capital adequacy ratio is the quotient of the capital base of the Bank and its risk weighted asset

base. In accordance with Central Bank of Nigeria regulations, a minimqm ratio of 10% is to be

maintained,

Tier L capital

Ordinary share capital

Retained earnings

Statutory reserves

Share premium

Total qualifying Tier I capital (A)

Tier 2 capital

Fair value reserve for available for sale

securities

Regulatory risk reserues

Total qualiSing Tier 1 capital (B)

Total regulatory capital (C):(A+B)

Risk-weighted assets (D)

Capital Adequacy ratio (CAR): (C/D)

December 2021

N

770,905,67A

904,159,540

307,324,975

J ,652

1.325.838.737

75,351,726

75,351,726

1,401,19a,463

3,796,802,999

27%

December 2020

N

110,905,670

669,340,501

273,389,796

1.448".652

1.056.084.609

75,351,725

75,351,726

1,131,436,335

3,122,709,612

37%
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Use of estimates and judgments

The Bank's management, in collaboration with the Audit Committee is responsible for the

development, selection ancl clisclosure of the Bank's critical accounting policies and estimates, and

the application of these policies and estimates.

These disclosures supplement the commentary on financial risk management.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Allowances for credit losses

Assets accounted for at amortised cost are evaluated for impairment on a basis described in

accounting policy 3.15

The specific counterparty component of the total allowances for impairment applies to claims

evaluated individually for.impairment and is based upon management's best estimate of the present

value of the cash flows that are expected to be received. In estimating these cash flows, management

makes juclgments about a cou-nter party's financial situation and the net realisable value of any

underlying collateral. Each impaired asset is assessed on its merits, and the workout strategy and

estimate qf cash flows considered recoverable are independently approved by the Credit Committee.

Collectively assessed impairment allowances cover credit losses inherent in portfolios of loans with

similar economic characteristics when there is objective evidence to suggest that they contain

impaired loans, but the indiviclual impaired items cannot yet be identified. In assessing the need for

collective loan loss allowances, management considers factors such as credit quality, portfolio size,

concentrations, and economic factors. In order to estimate the required allowance, assumptions are

made to define the way interest losses are modelecl and to determine the required input parameters,

based on historical experience and current economic conclitions. The accuracy of the allowances

depends on how well these estimate of future cash flows for specific counterparty allowances and the

model assumptions and parameters used in cletermining collective allowances are made.

4.17 Determining fair values

The determination of fair value for financial assets and liabilities for which there is no observable

market price requires the use of techniques as described in accounting policy 3.14 For financial

instruments that trade infrequently and have little price transparency, fair value is less objective, and

requires varying degrees of judgment d6pending on liquidity, concentration, uncertainty of market

factors, pricing assumptions and other risks affecting the specific instrument.

t
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lritical accounting judgments in applying the Bank's accounting policies

rccounting judgments made in applying the Bank's accounting policies include:

Ialuation of financial instruments

'he Bank's accounting policy on fair value measurements is discussed under note 3

k measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the nature and

.rsed in making the measurements:

,evel 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for an identical

nstrument.

,eveL 2: Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either directly (i.e., as prices) or

ndirectly (i.e., derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued using: quoted

narket prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar

nstruments in markets that are considered less than active; or other valuation techniques

vhere all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data.

,evel 3: Valuation techniques using inputs that are not based on qbservable market data, i.e.

rnobservable inputs. This category includes all instruments where the valuation technique

ncludes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs could have a

ignificant effect on the instrument's valuation. This category includes instruments that are

,alued based on quoted prices for similar instruments where significant unobservable

rdjustments or assumptions are requirecl to reflect differences between the instrument

e below analyses financial instruments measured at fair value into the fair value hierarchy at

rf the reporting period:

ember 2022 Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total

NNNN
ial assets held for trading:

rle for sale investment 26,799,055 26,799,055

lember 2021

ial assets held for trading

rle for sale investment 14,590,918 14,590,918
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4,19 Financial assets and liabilities classification l

The Bank's accognting policies provicle scope for assets and liabilities to be designated on inception

into different accounting cate gories i1 certain circumstances :

Details of the Bank's classification of financial assets and liabilities are given in note 5, 6, 7 and 8

4,20 Depreciation and carrying value of property and equipment

The estimation of the useful lives of assets is based on management's judgment. Any material

adjustment to the estimatecl useful lives of items of property and equipment will have an impact on

the carrying value of these items.

4.21 Determination of impairment of property and equipment, and intangible assets,

excluding goodwill

Management is requirecl to make judgments concerning the cause, timing and amount of impairment.

In the identification of impairment inclicators, rhanagement considers the impact of changes in

current competitive conditions, cost of capital, availability of funding, technological obsolescence,

discontinuance of services and other circumstances that could indicate that impairment exists. The

Bank applies the impairment assessment to its separate cash generating units. This requires

management to make significant judgments and estimates concerning the existence of impairment

indicators, separate cash generating units, remaining useful lives of assets, projected cash flows and

net realisable values. Management's judgment is also required when assessing whether a previously

recognised impairment loss should be reversed.

4.22 Geographicalsegments
'The Company operates in one geographical region; Nigeria and does not have a secondary reporting

segment.
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NOTDS TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand

Current accollnts with banks in Nigeria
Money market placements

BALANCES HELD WITH OTHER BANIG
First Bank Plc

Werna Bank Plc -Ojota
Guaranty Trust Bank Plc.-Lagos

Fidelity Bank Plc.

Polaris Banl< .-lkorodu
Zenitlt Ilank Plc.

First City Monurrrent Banlc Plc.

Sterling Bank Plc.

Keystone Bank Plc.

Access

UBA

PLACEMENTS
Wema Bank
First Bank Plc,

I(eystone Bank Plc.

Zenitlt Bank Plc.

Davodani Microfinance Bank Limited

Loans and Advances
Stage 1-12 Months ECL
Stage 2 - Life Time ECL Not Credited Impaired
Stage 3 - Non Performing Loans

Gross Loans and Advances

5i Less Allowances for Impairement:
Stage 1-12 Months ECL
Stage 2 - Life Tirne ECL Not Credited Impaired
Stage 3 - Non Perfonning Loans

Total Allowance

Net Loans and Advances

5ii Movement of Loan Impairment
Balance b/f
Written-off

Charge for the Year

Impairment for the year

23,331,549

100,000,000

307,331,549 401,761,444

2022
F+

17,937,501

294,577,646

? ,ot'1,.3?1,?r4?

__999,846, _

2021
N
13,735,556

270,475,432
401,7.91,444

____68r,972,432_

B;809,095

12,856,583

13,876,206

16,187,441

3,729
177,130,427

3 9,375

38,395,159

1,779,527

10,742,646

4,759,468

16,505J854

1,3,568,431

24,084,375

2,881,474

60,735

175,789,605

39,375

19,545,944

473,701

3,717,996
13,g0g,941

284,577,646 270,475,432

100,000,000

84,000,000

I00,000,000

84,000,000

194,477,974

23,283,570

5

2,464,371,949

44,69A,426

169 631 "/77

2,031,185,534

144,107,919

9,171,206

2,194,404,559

1,104,693

4,419,734

12,887,974

31,713,782

28,937,053

9,111,206

18,411,391

742,517

F+

69,662,041

(82,525,549)

. ,31,274,9?.7

_1g,4ll,3gl

N
53,1 06,066

______1EI55fZI_
69,662,041

69,662,04L

____2460a12J59_

60



Breakdown of Movement
Stage 1.-12 Months ECL
Stage 2 - Life Time BCL Not Credited Impaired
Stage 3 - Non Performing Loans
TotalAllowance

Loan by Type:
Micro loans and advances
Small and rnediurn enterprise loans
IVIicro Lease Loan
Hire purchase
Staff loans

By Maturity profile:
Under 1 rnonth
I to 3 months
3 to 6 months
6to 12 months
Over 12 months

2022
*+

I ,104,683
4,419,734

12,887,974

2Q2L

F*

31,713,792
28,837,053
9,111,206

18,411,391 69,662,04L

F+

2,775,248,665
495,555,568

996,,794
3,904,468
3,077,656

?,678,684J51

N
1,204,608,833

682,901,610
491,691,049
184,715,671
174,776,989

2,678,684J51

N
1,704,135,556

474,Q15,325
4,074,909
1,709,236

469,632

2,184,404,559

f{
982,330,457
556,890,363
400,954,448
150,631,329
93,597,962

2,184,404,559

5b Movement in Ioans nnd advances

Opening Net loans
Advances during the year -net

Impairment during the Year
Net Loans and aclvances

::,

6 Equity Investment

Equities
Impairment

7 Treasury Bills

Treasury bills
Less: specific allowance impairment

2,660,272,760 2,114,742,517

2,114,742,517
563,941,634

1,895,3 13,794
289,090,765

2,678,684,151
(18,411,391)

2,184,404,559
(69,662,041)

2022
F+

2021
N

31,957,629
(5,158,574)
?6 ?qq 05s

21,957,629
(7,366,717)
t45q0qlR

91,770,445 82,989,620

9L,774,445 82,989,620

5t
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Other assets

Prepayments(8i)

Other receivables(Bii)

8i Prepayments
Prepaid Rent
Stock of ATM Cards
Inventories
Prepaid Insurance
0thers

8ii Qther Receivables '

Int Rec'- Bless Group Loan
Int Rec'- DBN Loan
Int Rec'- DPA loan
Int Rec'- General Loan
Int Rec'- I Go Build Loan
Int Rec'- IDA Loan
Int Rec'- ISDA loan
Int Rec'- Lease Loan
Int Rec'- Salary Nownow Loan
Int Rec'- Staff Loan
OD int Rec- Current Acc
Cheque Receivable- Fidelity Bank
Int Rec'- Beta Loan
Others

184,578,527 116,660,395

184,578,527 116,660,395

8 2022
FS

2021
F+

75,372,137

109,206,391

5r,272,373

65,388,022

23,76r,244
9,041,500
2,060,740

36,587,391
a
J 921 72

1 1,989,200
9,237,500

950,000
27,895,350

231

_____J1;?EJ_

2022
F+

1,839,404
6,064,732

12,583,915
38,123,819

2,762
28,127,882
18,43 8,100

1,343
177,065

40,234
2,116,264
1,453,090

2021
N

1,187,997
6,442,90A
7,792,2L2

29,956,797
2,762

12,590,399
6,909,272

3,069
24t,436

11,045
227,979

19,075
3,4Q2239,491

__Mt06121_ 65,388,022

t

___jw2a11_

62



ca\o

t

Nr*
ro
tn
F=
F-

'+

.+

.+

co

t-\o
ro
r+

ro
o\
tf)
co

!n

tn
ol

r+
!o

N
$
tn
\o
t\I
o\
a-
ln

\o
tt
tn
m
,..1
t)
ol
cn

a.l
co

00
F-t
a.lol

t'-N
F-
oo
F-
co

F-o\t
N
N
$
N

€
\o
t+
o\
co
co
1.)

v
rs
ln
o\
ro

tn

at
N
o

oq
0)

m

(\l
ol
GI

oo
60tr
IE
OA

-O ti
()!z<

\r)
o\
oo
ro"
\o
(--

t--\o$
c.t\o
O
cn

\o
o\
\o
oo\r
o\

co

co
ca)\o
=j:\o

@

\o.f
C.l
@

c{
ta)rn
oo

\ov:f,\o00$
a^ \p- vr
(n Ir) ca
c\l in C\l(\Iir)O
f-dc\J\OSoa

lrl .-
:ooo''Io o
.nx=
e). t'- oirt oi rri

(\r-Ocncao\OcnO
$r-rnri' ol oo
F- \O 0O

N**

ilsa
:L cil 00{$ R
S *rei

n)i-
coH\o\o -^*co>F-.i- 3 0\

od ca ni

!l oo oa*^co O
9 r-: c"i
iln 3
3 -rd

a

a
olro-

a.l $ Lo' o
^r O.i !
o 

^L-l 
::

l.: ol o-r c H
O arts v-H.2ts.-q)
c! :j,o 0,l .=
YdoXcs
Y rr bll .i ua-EHH
A<Ur!O

r-
cO
t
e1l
c.l

c.l

o\
o\\t
\o

c.t+

\o
o\o
=fF*
o{
oo
cn

$
oo
sl
oo

\t

o\
o\\o
!f,

c,l
It-

C\l\o
c{
o\o
<f,

(>
O
\o

E3a
NAV'^-^s

iruXSaF 
S$$

o,oA.3 qQE

E E. iqg
' R=i

lts o\oeq) X ta,$o
E: F-coo

E.+fr 
= 

E E
': (r rr)rni\J I{ cq;. g

E€ ; SEQ5 o !{: titnY
'E.HE ix asXLflAlcn\O=

EE '$ Ksi
ts *dri{ E €3E

E E. B$$

b0 s8tr cool
'rJ .!, t-. *
-&N.^
= 

,a ao^

tA oo F-\o ca

6',g Kq)'=

Fr Fq

O

e
t.)\ov

o1
o1

,ri
\o

F
g0
03kF

Frz
T{
a

o
trt

z,

ti .'l
dhr.'\ =En ilarO E.E S
n/.rhiiO
0. g: E.6'oiu<<o

F(A2
Hrda5
ztrHdkrd
irD
Sr-UZ

43rrf
Ftd
Fr Ai

P2
irA
H
F
Zo\



I

NOTES TO TI{E FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTS

10 Deposit liabilities
Current
gavings

Term

I I 'I'axation
Current I'dx I i abi I it ies

Staternent of Financial Position
Balance brought fbrward

Tax Provision for the Year

Payment during the year

Balance carried forward

lncome Statement
Income tax

12 Term loans
Development Bank of Nigeria Plc. Fund
Oikocredit Ecumenical Development Cooperatives

Symbiotics Investments SA
FMDQ-CP

13 Other liabilities
Account payable

Accrued expenses

Other Known Losses
13i Other accounts payable

13i Other Accounts Payable
Provision for lnterest expense on fund
Sundry Deposit
Deduction For Pension
Paye LIII.S
Provision for Service Providers
Provision for Staff Training
Stamp Duty
Provision for Staff ProdLrctivity Allowance
Withholding Tax
Provision for Attdit
lnterest in Suspense

os.s62.420]t (6.218.846)

I 1 .016.537 19,578,957

19,578,9s7

Epqapg!_

2022

N
63,460,673

901,258,999
1

2A2t

t[
56,835,874

607,807,485

?96,179',s31
970,821,890

1.0,797,803

ls,qqqooq_
25,797,803

461,666,667
375,225,305

_-L8e1,212__

36,578,957

455,625,000

420,000,000
200,986,021

J!15{!1,021_

16,466,533
, 2,429

16,189,294

26,597,000
86,770,404

128,956,959
108, 701,s07

125,1 70,469

29,076,036
2,',159,777

2,691,726

38,632,535
1,187,632
3,122,979

917,655
5,443,474
5,708,3 l3

162,75Q

16,543,115
1,495,161
l,80o,ooo

4,445,292
632,065
639,950

31,286,987
2,s40,927
2,200,000

32,429,348
108,701 ,507

1911sq'78e

___86;1ry49!-_

t4

(a)

(b)

Capital and Reserves
Share capital
Authorised :

Ordinary shares of N1 each

Issued and fully paid -
221,811,340 Ordinary shares of 50k each.

Increment during the year

Balance, end of tlte year

150,000,000

110,905,670

110,905,670

17,009,000 15,0p0,000

17,ooo,oo0 Epaqpq!_

110,905,670

64
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NOTES TO TIIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 RETAINED EARNINGS
Balance at 1 January

Opening adjustment rcstatement

Restated opening balance

Total comprehensive income for the Srear

Transfer to statutory reselye

Transfer to RRR

L6 NOTE TO OTHERRESERVES
Shale premium

Statutory reserve

Regulatory reserve

l7 Interest income
Interest on loans
Interest on deposit
Interest on current accounts
Total Interests Income.

2022

N
668,340,501

(1,726,583)

2021

!*
534,629,462

(9,313,6131

666,613,919

271,480,7 11

(33,935,099)

525,315,849

185,641 ,889

(23,205,236)

( 19,412,000)

59,540 668,340,501

3,449,652

307,324,875

7 51 726

3,448,652

273,389,786

75,357,726

53 352,L90,164

Total Equity

Regulatory Risk Reserve
As at i January Transfer from retained earning
As at December

lqeqdlq,66s _

75,351,726 75,351,726
75,351,726 75,351,726

This is a reserve that arose by comparing impairment of risk asset under IFRS and provisions
for the risk asset using CBN pnrdential Guideline.

!l

Where the impairment under IFRS is lower than the provision amount under Prudential
Guideline, the IFRS impairment figures is recognized in the profit or loss account.

However, the diff'erence between the IFRS impairment and the prudential guideline
provisioning are transferred from the distributable reserve to non-distributable reselye

970,467,952
37,439,050
2,099,375

1,010,005,277

771,518,804
19,963,017

992,43]

__Jn,Tqt_

1,290,294,792
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18 Interest ExPense

Savings account

Fixed dePosit accotutt

LASMI Fund

BOI Fund

OII(O Fund

DBN Fund

SYMBIOTIC Fund

FMDQ Fund

Otlter accounts

Total interest exPense

19 Fees and commission income

Commission and charges

Income from non financial services

Total fee and commission income

20 Personnel expenses

Wages and salaries

Contributions to defined contribution plans

Other staff costs

2l Other operating expenses

Directors' emoluments

Auditors' remuneration

Others

2022

N
1,884,1 54

4L,579,300

39,500,000

33,169,419

20,000,000

10,000,000

15,844,'763

202L

++

L,487 ,7 15

30,591,217

1,294,932

166,667

59,688,096

35,148,887

1 1

161 ,637 139,51 1,958

158,829,216 123,294,442

146,860869 .s57

159.698,773 123,441,302

345,670,844

7,489,391

f 6,03 5,036

409,195,267

6,185,000

2,200,000

275,498,346

5,723,842

593

307,884,781

4,o2o,ooo

1,800,000

231,aLz,ggt i81,9 18,555

,991 187,73 8,555

44"444
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. Earnings Pershare

Basic earnings Per share
Tlre calcuration of basic earnings per srrare at 31 Decemb er 2022 was based on the profit auributable to

ordinary sharel.rolders ancl weiglrted ;"g. number of ordinary shares outstanding calculated as

follows:
Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Issued ordinary shares at beginning ofthe year

Weighted effect of shares issued during the year

Weighted average number of ordinary shares at end of the year

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders

Profit for the year attributable to equlty holders

Earnings per share (kobo)

110,905,570 1 10,905,670

221.811,340 221,811

271,480,711 18s,61lq!2_
122.39 83.6e

24

57

D1
216

104
92

55

t6
9

ru

155

58

4T

l8

2022 2021
N

110,905,670

N
t 10,905,670

23 EMPLOYEES
The average number of fulltime persons employed by the Bank

dr.rring tlie year was as follows:

Manageuent staff

Senior staff++

Jr"urior staff

The nurnber of employees of tlie Bank, other than clirectors, whose cluties ivere

wholly or mainly cliscliarged in Nigeria, received emoluments (excluding pension

contributions ancl certain benefits/allowances) in the following ranges:

Below N lrnilliom

N1,000,001 - N1,500,000

N1, 500, 001 - N2, 500, 000

N2,500,001 - N3,500,000
Above N3,500

19

28

225

272

u2

24 Directors' Emolument
Remuneration puii io Oirrctors (excluding pension contributions and ceftain benefits/allowances)

of the Bank was as follows:

25 Litigations and Claims
The-Bank ltad no litigations and claims during the year'

26 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
There were no contingent assets and liabilities as at 3l December,2A22

27 Related Parties-Transactions with I(ey Management Personnel

The Bank,s r."y .urug.;ent personnel, and perins connected with them, are also considered to be rolated parties

for disclosure p*po.Jr. The iefinition of key management includes close members of family ofkef.qusgygl a1d

any entity over which key management exerlise coritrol. The key management personnel have been idEntified as the

senior management staff and dirictors of the'Bank. close members of family {e tlo.se 9T]L{ffTltfl}"#ilo'
expected to Influ.n.., qr be influenced by that individual in their dealings with Infinity it4icrofinance Eank' I riere

were no transactions with key management personnel and their immediate relatives during the yeal

I
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Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Financial assets held tbr trading

Loans and advances
Investrnent Securities :

- Available-for-sale securities

- Held to maturity securities

Other lnvestmeuts

Other assets

Intangible Asset

Properly artd equ iprnent
Total assets

Liabilities:

Deposit liabilities

Current tax liabilities
'lenn loans

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets

Equity:

Shale capital

Retained earnings

Other reserves

Total equity attriburable to equity holders
ofthe conrpany

Gross earning

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit after taxation

t 
Other comprehensive income

Total Comprehensive income

609,846,695 489,235;500 210,682,633

2,660,272,760 2,714,742,517 1,842,207,',728 1,403,000,445 1,126,356,999

26,799,055

91,770,445

1,141,790,649

11,016,537

I ,016,611 ,021

125

2021

l+

685,972,432

14,590,918

82,999,620

910,82r,890

19,578,957

836,891,972

2020

4,590,919

79,018,000

896,822,480

10,797,803

659,791,667

2019

4,590,918

78,211,000

781,370,469

18,011,294

147,472,222

2018

l+

197,657,925

NNN

184,578,527 116,660,395 I10,111,210 59,979,995 79,560,979

223,535,416 1.07,753,722 114,051,353 92,249,676 94,694,244

:126W,899 3,122J09,612 2,63931

1 98

1,436,214,225 1,166,459,934 990.131 ,559 857,307,909 720,240,479

110,905,670

904,159,540

386,125,253

110,905,670

668,340,501

352,190,164

1 10,905,670

534,629,462

309,572,928

110,905,670

450,218,532

296,183,707

110,905,670

344,575,s87

264,759,221

1,401,190,462 1,131,436,335 955,108,059 857,307,909 720,240,479

1,169,704,050

286,272,574

(17,000,000)

269,272,574

2,209,137

271,490,711

122

915,715,554

200,641,889

(15,000,000)

185,641,889

705,723,089

119.113,764

(12,000,000)

107,113,764

709,881,673

159,689,884

(13,750,000)

145,939,894

585,234,276

t23r778,538

(10,000,000)

113,778,539

1 85,64 1,889

84

107,113,764 145,939,884

66

113,778,538

51Earnings per share 48

t

5,242,340

78,211,000

;200

642,860,016

I 8,5 10,688

164,249,567

24,852,638

2,36_0,588,q74 \956,249,779 t,649,093,150 993,306,759 950,472,909
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